IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Electronically Filed
Aug 30 2022 04:12 p.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Appellant, Clerk of Supreme Court

VS. Case No. 2014-CR-00062
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ADDENDUM TO NOTICE OF WITNESS
(FILED JAN 23'15)

AFFIDAVIT OF PERSONAL SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

AFFIDAVIT “A"
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT "“B”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “C”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “I”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(FILED DEC 24'18)

AFFIDAVIT
(FILED OCT 6'16)

AFFIDAVIT “C"’
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “ITI”
(FILED NOV 23'20)

AFFIDAVIT “1v
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(FILED JAN 6'15)

AFFIDAVIT “2"
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “A”
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “B”
(FILED JAN 4'21)

PAGE NO.

701-702

2424-2426

3105-3119

3120-3125

3126-3132

3133-3154

3005-3006

1488-1489

3545-3551

3376-3386

3449-3473

537-545

3474-3524

3525-3539

3540-3544

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18
(voL. 23
(VoL. 23
(VOL.. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 22
(voL. 11
(VOL. 28
(VOL. 26
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 3)
(VOoL. 27
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 28
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ALTERNATIVE SENTENCING SUPPLEMENTAL

REPORT
(FILED APRIL 15'14)

AMENDED ORDER FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 18'14)

APPELLANT’S INFORMAL BRIEF
(FILED APR 19'21)

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF
INTERPRETER
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE
PRISONER
(FILED SEP 27'18)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE
PRISONER
(FILED AUG 8'18)

BRIEF REGARDING STRUCTURAL
(FILED SEP 17'18)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED MAR 8'21)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED JUN 22'22)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FiLED'MAY“ll'lS)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 1'21)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED JAN 11'21)

CERTIFICATE‘QF SERVICE
(FILLED APRIL 11'14)

PAGE NO.

84-85

413

3920-3928

233-238

2504-2505

2431—2432
2494-2499
3915-3916
3009-3012
4036-4037
1085-1087
3858-3859
3785-3786

70

VOL . NO.
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 18
[VOL. 18
(VOL. 30
(VonL. 22
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 7)
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 1)
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DESCRIPTION

CERTIFICATE OF -SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED SEP 29'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL.18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 14'16)

CERTIFICATE PF MAILING
(FILED NOV 9'20)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED MAR 21'22)
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 11'21)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 23'20)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED AUG 4'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED APR 21'21)

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

PAGE NO.

2430
280"
227
232
1510
3366-3367
4019-4020
3907-3910
3372-3375
269

3929-3930

CERTIFICATE OF THAT NO TRANSCRIPT

IS BEING REQUESTED
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
(FILED JUL 22'20)

3013-3014

3049

CLERKS CERTIFICATE (SUPREME COURT)

(FILED_JAN 14'16)'

EVIDENCE IN MITIGATION
(FILED APR 14'15)

1485

999-1003

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 18
(VoL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 25)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 25)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 6)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 7'17)

EX PARTE MOTION : FOR LEAVING TO HIRE
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 14'17)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUEST
FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 3'17)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ADDITIONAL
INVESTIGATIVE FEES
(FILED JAN 2'15)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUFST FOR
PAYMENT
(FILED JUL 24'17)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A
CRIME ‘SCENE Co ‘
(FILE AUG'S 18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED MAY 16‘18) : e :

EX PARTE ‘MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A .
PSYCHIATRIC EXPERT
(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX -PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILmD MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION
REPRESENTATION EXPERT
(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX -PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
LINGUISTICS EXPERT
(ﬂILED OCT 25 '18)

EX PARTE APPLlCATION FOR FELS(SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

PAGE NO.

1550-1552
1553-1556
1546-1548
462-467

1569—I$7O

2441-2443

}...l
\0
~J
l_.l
!
r—.\
\0
~J
N

2433-2436
1984-198¢
2444-2447

2526-2530

445-447

VOL. NO. |.
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
(VOLT 18
(VOL. 14
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 14
(VOL. 18
(voﬁ. 1é
(VOL. 2)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FEES (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

'EX PARTE APPLICATION FEES (SEALED)

(FILED APRIL 17'14)

EX PARTE APPLICATICN FOR FUNDS (SEALED)

(FILED NOV 17'14).

“K PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER
(FILED AUG 16'18)

EX PARTE REQUEST FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FUNDS FOR
EXPERT WITNESS (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 6'15)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR EXPERT WITNESS
FEES
(FILED MAR 7'19)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILFD JAN 4'21)

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM(SEALFD)
(FILED NOV 14'16)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV 9'20)

PAGE NO.

142 424
228-231
282-339
2454-2456

347-348

. 1975-1983

786-787

3016-3029
3693-3780
3552-3654
3655-3692
1502-1507

3155-3256

VOL. NO.
(va. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. g)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 29)
(VOL. 28)
(VoL. 29
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 24




BN

~N N W

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

INDEX CF EXHIBIT(S)
(FILED NOV 9'20)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV 9'20)

INFORMATION

(FILED APRIL 8'14)

INSTRUCTION TC THE JURY
(FILED FEB 5'15)

ISSUED WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED MAY 24'18)

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(FILED APR 21'15)

JURY VENIRE

(FILED JAN 5'15)

JURY VERDICT
(FILED FEB 5'15)

LIST OF TRIAL JURORS
(FILED JAN 5'15)

MOTION TO COMPEL COMPLIANCE
WITE DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
(FILED SEP 4'18)

(FILED DEC 12'14)

MOTION TO STRIKE BRIEF REGARDING

STRUCTURAL ERROR OR, IN THE

ALTERNATIVE, MOTION FOR SUFFICIENT
TIME TO RESPOND TO BRIEF IN WRITING

(FILED -SEP 18'18)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING CRIME
SCENE AND AUTOPSY PHOTOGRAPHS

PAGE NO.

3257-3278

3279-3363

55-60

719-758

2422-2423

1016-1018

471
710-718

470
2475-2478

356-360

2500-2502

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 24)
(VOIL.. 25)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 7)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 18
(VOL.. 2)
18)

(VOL.
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

MOTION TO EXCLUDE TESTIMONY
OF NATASHA KHARIKOVA -
(FILED OCT 29'18)

MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT THEREOF
(FILED APRIL-'17"14)

MOTION FOR COURT ORDER TO ALLOW
DEFENSE INSPECTION OF SCENE OF
ALLEGED OFFENSE

(FILED DEC 31'14)

MOTION TO RESPONDENT “MOTION TO
DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST CONVICTION
PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS”

(FILED JAN 11'21)

MOTION TO PROCEED IN FORMA
PAUPERIS
(FILED MAY 11'15)

MOTION ‘TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
(FILED NOV $'20)

-MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDINu DEATH

CERTIFICATE
(FILED DEC 26'14).

MOTION TO DISMISS PRO PER THIRD POST
CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS

(FILED APRIL 5'22)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING
UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND -COLLATERAL
OFFENSES

(FILED DEC 29'14)

MOTION FOR DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST
CONVICTION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED NOV 19'20)

PAGE NO.

2532-2535

221-223

455-458

3781-3784

1078-1079

3058-3066

424-441

4023-4026

448-451

3368-3371

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 19)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL.. 30)
(VOL. 7)
(VOL.22)
(VOL:.. 3)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 3)
(VOoL. 25
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DESCRIPTION

MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS ‘

(FILED JAN 24'18)

MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR INTERPRETER
(FILED MAY 9'17)

MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF JAVS
RECORDINGS
(FILED MAY 9'17)

MOTION FOR PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (SECOND POST CONVICTION)
(FILED JAN 4'21)

MOTION FOR PETITION TO 13‘STABLISH
FACTUAL INNOCENCE :
(E'MED JAN 4'21)

MOTION WOR PETITION FOR EN
BANC RECONSIDERATICN
(FILED JAN 3'22) -

MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL
(FILED NOV 14'16)

MOTION FOR. ENLARGEMENT OF
TIME
(FILED APRIL 11'18)

MOTION IN LIVMINE REGARDING JUROR-
QUESTIONING CF WITNmSSES
(FILED DEC 12'14)

MOTION IN -LIMINE REGARDING TESTIMONY
CONCERNING CRIME SCENE RECONSTRUCTION
BY 'MATTHEW NOEDEL * '

(FILED JAN 20'15)

MOTION TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14) -

PAGE NO.

1574-1579

1561-1564

1558-1560
3445-3446
3447-3448

3933-3942

1508-1509°
1493-1497
351-355

588-693

270-275

VOIL.. NO.
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 27)
(VOL. 27}
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 4)
(VOL. 2)
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DESCRIPTION

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION

(FILED FEB 11'21)

MOTION TO WITHDRAW REQUEQT FOR
PAYMENT FIREARM
(FILED MAR 6'15)

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION

~(FILED FEB 1'21)

MOTION TC WITHDRAW COUNSEL
(FILED OCT 6'16)

NON OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS MOTION

IN LIMINE RE: UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND
COLLATERAL OFFENSES '
(FILED JAN 12'15)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JAN 18'18)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JUN 21'22)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED MAY 11'15)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED FEB 22'21)

NOTICE OF ASSOCIATION OF COUNSEL
(FILED SEP 17'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED‘MAY 25'18) :

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED DEC 24'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

(FILED JAN’21)

PAGE NO.

3864-3906

815

3815-3857

1486-1487

548-549

3007—3008
4035

10§3-1084
3911-3914
2492-2493
2427-2429

2986-3004

3801-3814

VOL. NO.

(VOL. 20)
(VOL. 5)

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.:3)

(VOL. ;2)
(VOL. 31)
(VoL. 17)

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOoL. 22)
(VOL. 30)
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DESCRIPTION

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTTICE
(FILED

NOTICE

OF EXPERT WITNESS
DEC 17'14)

OF EXPERT WITNESS
JAN 6'15).

CF EXPERT WITNESS
AUG’18)

'OF EXPERT WITNESS

OCT 25'18)

IN LTEU OF REMITTITUR

(SUPREME COURT)

(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICH
(FILED

NOTICE

MAR 15'22)

OF MOTION
NOV 9'20)

OF MOTION

NOV '9'20)

OF NON-CAPITAL PROCEEDINGS
APRIL 8'14)

OF 'NON-OPPOSITION TO

DEFENDANTS MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CERTIFICATE

(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
(FILED

NOTICE
{FILED

NOTICE

DEC 29'14)

OF PROSECUTION TRIAL WITNESS
DEC 17'14)

OF WITNESS
JAN 20'15)

OF WITNESSES
SEPflbeB)

OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION FOR

COURT ORDER TO ALLOW DEFENSE
INSPECTICON OF. SCENE OF ALLEGED

PAGE NO.

369-412

472-536 -

2458-2474

2521-2525

3954

3050-3052

68-69

452-453
361-268
585-587

2485-2487

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL.. 18)
(VOL.. 18)
(VOoL. 21
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 22)
(VOoL. 1)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 4)
(VOL.. 18)




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

OFFENSE
(FILED JAN 12'15)

OPPOSITION TO STATE’S MOTION TO
INCREASE BAIL
(FILED APRIL 11'14)

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS

"MOTION TO LIMINE RE: CRIME SCENE

RECONSTRUCTION
(FILED JAN 22'15)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED FEB 8'22)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED 24'17)

ORDER DENYING REHEARING
(FILED JAN 14'22)

ORDER
(FILED SEP 27'17)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED DEC :20'21)

ORDER TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14)

ORDER GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME
(FILED JAN 30'18)

ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD
AND REGARDING BRIEFING
(FILE MAR 23'21)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 11'17)

PAGE_NO.

546-547

71-80

694-700

3947-3949

1571

3943

1573
3931-3932
276

1584

3918-3919

1566

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 30
(VOoL. 11
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER FOR APPOIWTMWNT OF CO- COUNSVL
(FILED OCT 1'14)

ORDER
(FI ED APRIL 12'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR EMPLOYMENT
OF A FORENSIC PATHOLOGIST AND SEALING
APPLICATION AND ORDER (SEALED)

(FILED NOV 17'14)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 14'15)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 11'17)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTION FOR: "=
INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 17'18)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTION FOR
INTERPRETER FEES ~
(fILED MAY 17°18)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTION FOR
INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 17'18)

ORDER -
(FILED FEB 5'21)

ORDER 'FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 8114)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR FORENSIC
PATHOLOGIST AND SEALING APPLICATION
AND ORDER (SEALED) -

(FILED DEC 9'14)

ORDER: DENYING PETITION (SUPREME COURT)
(FILED FEB 22'22) .

PAGE NO.

1970

340
1088-1089

1565
1987
1988
1989

3862-3863

349

350

w
W
(S}
[\

i
W
D
u
W

VOL. NO.
(VOL.. 2)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 2)
(voL.. 7)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.. -14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL.. 30)

(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 31)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR LEAVE
TO HIRE INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 17'17).

ORDER FOR PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY FEES
(FILED APRIL 21'14)

ORDER FOR ISSUANCE OF WRTT OF HABEAS
CORPUS . | =
(FILED MAY 24'18)

ORDER .
(FILED JAN 11'21)

ORDER TRANSFERRING CASE TO DEPARTMENT 1
VACATING THE HEARING SET FOR DECEMBER
22, 2014 AND CONFIRMING THE TRIAL, DATE
OF JANUARY 27, 2015 AT 9:00AM '
(FILED DEC 19'14)

ORDER SETTING TRIAL
(FILED APRIL”21'14)

ORDER CONFIRMING TRIAL DATES AND
SETTING PRE-TRIAI CONFERENCE
(FILED DEC 24'14) o

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 4'17)
ORDER

{FILED JUNE 23'17)

ORDER - FOR - PAYMENT
(FILED MAR 9'15)

ORDER oo
(FILED AUG '9'18)

ORDER TC PRODUCE PRISONER
(FILED AUG 9'18)

PAGE NO.

1557

241

2421

3789-3800

239-240

415-416
1549

1568

998
2448-244¢°

2450

VOL. NO.
(VOL.. 11)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL.. 30)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11)
(VvoL.. 11)
(VOL. &)
(VOL. 18)
(voL. 18)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER

(FILED.AUG 9'18)
ORDER
(FILED AUGG 9'18)

ORDER-: :
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER CALLING JURY
(FILED JAN 2'15)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTICN
FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED AUG 20'18)

ORDER
(FILED JUN 21'22)

ORDER: FOR.'PAYMENT (K. BROWN)
(FILED FEB 23'15)

CRDER' SHORTENING TIME TO RESPOND
TO MOTION TO COMPEL

(FILED AEP 6'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FEES
FOR EMPLOYMENT OF AN INVESTIGATOR
AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS (SEALED)
(FILED JAN 2'15)
ORDER

{FILED JAN 3'17)
GRDER = " -

(FILED SEP 13'18)

ORDER ALLOWING THE DEFENSE TO
PURCHASE - WEAPON .

(FILED JAN 5'15)

ORDER:
(FILED NOV 28{16)

PAGE NO.
2451
2452
2453

459-460

2457

4031-4034

814
2479
461
1545

2490-2491

468

1540-1541

VOL . NO.
(VOL,. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
(VOLi. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
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INDEX OFVPLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION PAGE NO.

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (FORENSIC TECH) -
(bILED FEB 23'15) ' 813

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (NANCY STRAYERN) .
(FILED FEB 23'15) o 812

ORDWR SETTING CONTINUES HEARING
(FILED SEP 19'18) 2503

ORDER AUTHORIZING FEES FOR EMPLOYMENT

-OF 'INVESTIGATOR AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS

(SEALED)
(FILED APRIL 17'14) 219

ORDER GRANTING MOTION INMN LIMINE
REGARDING JURCR QUESTIONING OF

WITNESS

(FILED JAN 12'15) o . .. 850

ORDER INCREASING BAIL :
(FILED APRIL 14'14) . _ 82-83

ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER

(FILED OCT 1'18) _ 2520
ORDER

(FILED OCT 25'18) : 2531
ORDER OF 'AFFIRMANCE

(FILED DEC 21'15) 1479-1480
ORDER

(FILED DEC 23'20) 3387-3389

ORDER RE: MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CEPTIFICATE
(FILFD JAN 14'15) ‘ 551

ORDER RE: MOTION IN- LIMINE REGARDING
UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND COLLATERAL

OFFENSES

(FILED JAN 14'15) 552

NO

VOL. .

(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.
kVOL 
(VOL.
(VOL.
(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL:

18)

18

18

11

26
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL
(FILED APRIL 14'14)
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ORDER _ o
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RECORDS AND REGARDING BRIEFING
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ORDER DENYING POST-CONVICTION
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(FILED DEC 20'18)
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(POST CONVICTION)
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PETITIONER’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
TO EXCLUDE
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PETITIONER’S RESPONSE TO MOTION TO
COMPEL. AND . COUNTERMOTION FOR WAIVER
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(FILED SEP.6'18)
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FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PART 4)
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (ARRAIGNMENT)
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(FILED AUG 4'14) 267-268
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (POST
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(FILED MAY 25'18)
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(FILED NOV 9'20)
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(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “C”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “I”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
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AFFIDAVIT
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proceeding did you handle? What aspects?
A. I was appointed on March the 6th of 2014. And --
Q. And, ma'am, you're reading off your notes --

THE COURT: Are you reading some notes, ma'am?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I -- you want a copy?

THE COURT: You're not allowed to review any
notes unless you ask me and unless I tell you to do so. So
put your notes away.

THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: And I will tell you if I want you'to
review them.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. You prepared for her preliminary hearing.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And ydu participated in that preliminary hearing?

A. I did.

Q. Did -- in the course of your preparation, did you
have opportunity to review the file?

A. What wés available of it at that time, yes.

Q. Okay. Did that interview —-- did that include
transcripts of her interviews with sheriff's detectives?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did it include the video?

—CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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A. T don't think so.

Q.V Okay. Did you form_an opinion based upon your
training and experience as to whether an interpreter was
needed to speak with your-client?

A. I did ultimately. I didn't at that moment.

Q. From the transcript?

A. Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Objection to the foundation, what
the basis for the opinion is if she's offering her opinion.
THE COURT: It's overruled.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. You also spoke to her while she was in custody.
Correct?

A. One time.

Q. Okay. Were you able to speak -- did you consult
with —— were draw the —- withdraw the first question.

And you did that while she was in custody here at
the detention center in Douglas County?

A. Yes, downstairs.

Q. | And did you determine from co-counsel whether or
not you needed to bring an interpreter?

A. When I reviewed my notes of that interview, I
don't have anything specifically that refers to an

interpreter, but I did have a note that I had asked

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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Ms. Leibel -- is that how it's pronounced?

Q. Yes, Leibel.

A. Leibel. I -- I expressed that we had a problems
because of her statement that she had already given to the
police. And she said, "But they put words in my mouth."

Q. Okay.

A. And I have that in a quote.

Q. Okay. Did -- in your opinion, would have --

would have it been necessary for you to have an interpreter

had you cons- -- continued in the representation?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And no equivocation there?
A. No.

Q. And I —-- just to be clear, I'm talking about an

interpreter who would interpret your attorney-client

conversations.
A. Correct.
Q. Okay.
A. And T believe that one would have been necessary.
Q. Okay. And are you familiar with the provisions

of ADKT 04117
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And to your knowledge, does that set forth

standards for attorneys to follow when determining whether an

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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interpreter is needed?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And you would have followed those
standards?
A. I believe so.
Q. Okay. And those standards would have, in your
opinion, required an interpreter?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Did -- you did review what was found in
the file. Correct?
Al Yes.
Q. At that time?
And what type —-- this was a case where the jury
might have found that Mr. Leibel committed suicide?
A. That was one possibility.
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.
MR. MAIONE: I didn't --
' THE COURT: Well —-
MR. MAIONE: "Is this."” 1I'll change it to —--
THE COURT: I understand that. I sat through the
trial. It's not —-— the leading part of.it isn't persuading
me; the finder of fact. Go ahead and ask your questions.
Let's try to move on.

BY MR. MALONE:

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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Q. And it -- are you aware of the State's theory of
the case?

A. Uh—hqh. Yes.

Q. Okay. What did they say had happened or what
were they saying had happened?

A. That Ms. Leibel had murdered her husband.

Q. Okay. So the defense in this case would have
been suicide?

A; Yes.

Q. Okay. Were you familiar with any aspects of the
discovery that caused you to question Mr. Leibel's mental
state at the time of his death?

A. I was aware of some concerﬁs about his mental
state, both from the discovery and from talking with
Ms. Leibel.

Q. Okay. Had you continued with the case, do you
think it would -- would it -~ would you -— would have you
retained a psychological expert to review the file and render
an opinion?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And do you think that that would have been
the standard of practice in a murder case of this typé?

A. Yes.

MR. MALIONE: Thank you, Your Honor.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Ms. Armstrong, you were appointed on March 6th .of
2014. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And the preliminary hearing took place on
Rpril 3rd of 20147

A. I think so.

Q. So that was approximaﬁely -— a little less than a
month later?

A. Yes.

Q. And during that period of time, you met with
Ms. Leibel personally one time?

A. That's correct.

Q. And during the preliminary hearing, Ms. Brown
asked all the questions of the witnesses; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And approximately how long did you meet with
Ms. Leibel on that one time that you spoke with her in the —-
in between?

A. I didn't write it down, but I would estimate an
hour.

Q. Okay. And so -- and when you speak with people,

you frequently use idioms; is that correct?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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A. Yes.

0. And an idiom is a —-- is a series of words that
doesn't, on their face, mean what they would look like if
you're just -- if you're just looking at the words themselves.
Correct?

A. That's right.

Q. And the use of idioms for someone that has
English as a second language might be particularly confusing?

k. Definitely. 1I've had that experience many a time
with working with Spanish-speaking interpreters, and I have to
start over.

Q. So it's possible that, during your hour
conversation with Ms. Leibel, your use of idioms might have
led to some of her confusion with her conversation with you?

A. I'm not sure. I'm not sure.if I used idioms that
day, but I frequently do. 1I'm an Okie.

Q. Okay. And you never told Ms. Brown that, in any
further meetings -- attorney-client meetings, she should get
an interpreter, did you?

A. The only other time we worked together was at the
prelim, and there were three interpreters changing out every
20 minutes.

Q. But you never had a conversation about

attorney-client meetings in the future, that she needed an

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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interpreter for those?

A. I — the next time I met with the clerkh I was
dismissed from the case.

Q. So you never spoke with Ms. Brown between your
meeting with-Ms. Leibel and the preliminary hearing?

A. Well, not according to my notes. I believe there
was some e-mail correspondence between my secretary at the'
time, Donice [phonetic], regarding experts and that type of
thing. So there was some communication, but I don't remember
meeting with her.

Q. So Ms. Brown never had an opportunity to hear
your opinion on Ms. Leibel's ability to speak English after
you met with her personally for an hour?

A. I don't —— I don't have any notes that I said
anything. I do have a note from the District Court
arraignment the'day I was dismissed that said -- I always
write down, when I sit down, who is the judge, who are the
lawyers, whether the Defendant is present —-

0. And, ma'am, I don't -—- I don't mean to interrupt
and I appreciate all the extra information, but I think you
said -no in the beginning; So I'll ask any other questions
about --

THE COURT: I don't know if she finished her

answer, sir, so I'm going to allow her to finish.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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MR. JOHNSON: I guess I object to be unresponsive
to the question.

THE COURT: Well, your objection is overruled. I
just said she's going to get the chance to finish her answer.

THE WITNESS: When I wrote those notes, like I
always do, I put "no interpreter," and I was surprised that we
wouldn't have an interpreter for court.

THE COURT: Thank you.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

0. So you said your note was about a court
proceeding?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, when Mr. -- when post-conviction counsel

approached you about the issue of a psychiatrist or
psychologist, did he ever use the term "psychological autopsy"
with you?

A. I'm not sure 1f that was the term or "postmortem
psych eval."

Q. And was that the first time you had ever heard of
such a thing?

A. And that's what I told you when you asked me.
Yes.

Q. So even though you're saying that that would be

an appropriate thing to do in this case, you personally had

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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never heard of such a thing before?

A, I had not. And I had.also considered a psych
eval for Ms. Leibel. So when I mentioned that earlier, I
think that was my thought.

Q. Okay. So your thought -- when you said about the
psychologist earlier on direct, you weren't referring
specifically to the deceased, Mr. Leibel?

A.. No.

Q. Okay. And had you received all of the discovery
at this time that you had your conversation with Ms. Leibel?

A. I doubt it. I don't think so.

Q. And you were still waiting on further discovery

at the time of the preliminary hearing, too. Right?

A. I believe so.
0. So you didn't even have all the full information
to discuss with my -- Ms. Leibel at the time?

A. Not the police reports -- or follow-up police
reports, I should say.
Q. And you'd read the entire transcript from the
initial interview before you met with Ms. Leibel?
A. Yes.
Q. And so is there anything besides the transcript
and your hour-long conversation that leads to your opinion

here that she needed a translator during her future
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attorney-client conversations?

A. I believe that my opinion is based on both my
interaction with her and my years and years of experience.

Q. Have you worked with Russian speakers before?

A. No. No, sir, but I've worked on many, many cases
where the defendant didn't speak English.

0. But you haven't ever worked on it with Russian
interpreters before, peoplé'that speék Russian as a —- ot

English as a second language and Russian as a primary

language?
A. I have not.
Q. And you weren't present for any of the

attorney-client meetings between Ms. Brown and Ms. Leibel
after the preliminary hearing. Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you don't know whether Ms. Brown was able to
understand Ms. Leibel better than you were?

A. No, I don't know.

Q. So it's possible that, even though you had
difficulty during that hour-long conversation, Ms. Brown
didn't have the same difficulties you had?

A. That's possible.

MR. JOHNSON: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you have any redirect, sir?
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MR. MALONE: Yes.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Ms. Armstrong, after reviewing the transcript of
the interview that Ms. Leibel gave to the sheriffs —-
A. Yes.
Q. After you read that, did you have any doubt that
there was a language deficiency?
A, No.
MR. MALONE: Okay. Thank you.
THE COURT: On the part of Ms. Leibel or the
sheriffs?
THE WITNESS: "Communication," I —- would be
clearer.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Well, communication takes two parties. Correct?
A. (The witness nods.)

Q. Okay. And that was a yes?

A. Yes. Communication takes two parties.
Q. Okay. In your opinion formed on your
conversation, review of that transcript -- and I don't know if

you testified that you reviewed the video?

A. T don't remember seeing it.
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‘an interview.

Q. Okay. But based upon the review of the
transcript and your personal interaction with Ms. Leibel and
your communication, is there any doubt in your mind that she
would require an interpreter for every single interaction with
her lawyer?

A. There's no doubt in my mind.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. You don't know whether that transcript was an
accurate recounting of what was contained on the wvideo.
Correct?

A. No.

Q. And you didn't have an opportunity to witness the
demeanor -on the video between the questioner and the answerer,
being the Douglas County Sheriff's Office investigator and
Ms. Leibel. Correct?

A. I did not witness the demeanor, but I read many

Q. And so you don't think demeanor would be helpful
to determine whether one party understood the question being
asked and the other part -- so you don't think demeanor is

helpful to understand whether there is any understanding?
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A, Always.

Q. Always. So you didn't have all the information
to give your opinion when you just read that transcript.
Right?

A. I could have used more information, but I

believed what I said based on the information I had.

Q. Assuming it's accurate?
A. The transcript?

Q. Correct.

A. Sure. Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. MALONE: Nothing.

Thank you, Ms. Armstrong.

THE COURT: Ms. Armstrong, thank you very much
for being here now.

Now, one moment. Is there any intention to
recall this witness, or may she be permanently excused?

MR. JOHNSON: She may be excused by the State.

MR. MALONE: She can be excused.

THE COURT: Ms. Armstrong, thank you for being
here.

THE WITNESS: Thanks.

THE COURT: The Court will confirm she is indeed

o ke CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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THE WITNESS: She is what?

THE COURT: Indeed an Okie.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, the Petitioner will be
calling Dave Billau.

THE COURT: That's O-K-I-E.

Come on up, sir. If you would pause right about
there. Thank you.

(The witness was sworn.)
THE COURT: Come on up, sir.

Mr. Malone.

DAVE C. BILLAU,
having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Sir, will you state your name?
A. David C. Billau. B, as in boy, I-L-L-A-U.
Q. Thank you, sir. -
And, sir, what is your profession?

L. I'm a retired forensic investigator.
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Q. Okay.
A. I retired from the county of -- Washoe County in

our Crime Laboratory.

Q.. Did you have any prior employment in law
enforcement —-

A. I did.

Q. -— prior to that?

A. That was in Southern California beginning in 1975

with the City of Glendale Police Department.

0. And what was that job?

A. Same capacity as a forensic investigator.

Q. Okay. And have you kept educated in the field?

THE COURT: Mr. Malone, would you scoot over a

little bit. Mr. Johnson seems to want to see these witnesses.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Have you —-- have you kept up your education in
this field?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. And you're familiar with recent developménts?
A. Yes.
Q. And you remember what you've learned before?

A. Oh, yes.
Q. Okay. And are you currently employed in any

function that involves that prior employment?
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A. Oh, yes.

o. What? And what is that?

A. I do provide consultation to legal counsel and
also law enforcement agencies within certain forensic science
disciplines.

Q. And when you say "consultation with other law
enforcement agencies," would you recount what you do
specifically?

A. Yes. I assist them with reviewing the crime
scene, notes from the Crime Laboratory, also their analysis,
and some of the sciences such as the scienée of fingerprints,
also the science of bloodstain pattern interpretation and
photography.

Q. Is your throat okay?

A. I have allergies. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: There's some water for you there,

sir. Please free to help yourself.

BY MR. MALONE:
Q. And I do have a lozenge if you...
THE COURT: He didn't really come that prepared.
I don't want you to think that.
Go ahead.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.

MR. MALONE: The Judge gave that to me earlier.
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But I can tell your voice has changed or is a little bit
different.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Are you currently working on any cases for law
enforcement?
A. I am, yes.

Q. And what types of cases are those?

A. These would be with the City of Reno Police
Department for their bloodstain pattern analysis. And it's
due to the fact that they don't ——¢the Crime Laboratory does
not have any expert -- expertise in that particular science
now.

Q. Are you also familiar with the study of
ballistics?

A. Oh, vyes, I am.

Q. Okay. And you've been trained on that?

A. To a degree, yes.

Q. Okay. You have experience in tool mark analysis?

A, Yes, I do.

Q. Okay. And that's a -- that specifically usually

refers to firearms?

A. Some of it does, yes.
Q. Okay. And identification of particular firearms?
A. Yes.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

177 7 a%\\,l



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

.. PN
& (.

Forensic Science Division.
Q.
retained -- or been employed by them to determine trajectory
of gunshots?
A.
pattern trajectory.
Q.
familiar with the operation of firearms?
A,
Q.
A.
Q.
how they operate. Correct?
A,

Q.

Are you familiar with trajectory?

Yes.

You have experience with trajectory?

I have, yes.

You've utilized that on cases in the past?
Yes, I have.

Working for the government?

Working for the Washoe County Sheriff's Office

And have you, in the past, been required or been

Both with projectile trajectory and bloodstain

In the course of your training, have you become

Oh, absolutely, yes.
The general operation?
Yes.

So I'm -- and just to be clear, I'm talking about

That's correct.
The types of actions involved on firearms?

That is correct.
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Q. And are you familiar with the process of -- of

gunshot residue?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with the process for determining
distance?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I would ask that
Mr. Billau be qualified a$ an expert to address specifically
the work done in Mr. Noedel's report in all his aspects of
trajectory, ballistics, and gunshot.

THE COURT: Well, sir, you really don't need to
make that request. You can go forward and ask him whatever
questions you want to ask him. And if there are objections as
to foundation/ I'11 rule those as we go forward.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Were you retained to work -- were you retained by
Attorney Kris Brown to work on the Tatan—- —- Tatiana Leibel
case?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Okay. And did you develop information regarding
trajectory?

A. In that particular case, yes.
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Q. Okay. Did you develop information -and study the
weapon that was used?

A. When you say "study the weapon," I did not have
the weapon.

MR. JOHNSON: I just ask fof clarification on
what the word "develop" means.

MR. MALONE: 1I'll withdraw that question.

THE COURTQ Well, I think I understand what it
means.

Go ahead.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Do you understand how the weapon was -- do you —-
can you tell me what type of weapon was -- or what weapon was
involved in the Tatiana Leibel case, brand and type?

A, It was -- if I remember correctly, it was an a
Taurus model, manufacturer model. It was called, I believe,
the Judge at the time -- at that time. It was a revolver type
of long gun. When I say "long gun,"™ it had a barrel at least
18 inches or longer. It had a cylinder, so it would be also
classified as a revolver type of weapon, being that the
cylinder revolves. It had a hammer, a visible hammer on that
particular firearm and also a rifle-type stock.

Q. Is that weapon -- would that weapon commonly be

called a carbine?
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A. It could be. It depends upon the length éf the
barrel.

Q. Okay.

A. And, in this case, I believe it was 18 or 18 and
a half inches, and that would be considered a carbine.

Q. Okay. And was there anything unique about the
ammunition that could be fired by this particular weapon?

A. Yes. Both types of weapon -- one would be the
.45 Colt -- long Colf—éaliber pistol. It was also used in
rifles, but -- that particular cartridge, which is mostly for
pistols or rifles. And it was also in the caliber or gauge of
.410 shot shell.

Q. And have you been able to examine exemplar of
this weapon?

A. I have now, yes.

Q. Okay. You have?

A. Yes.

Q. And you did so after being retained by

post-conviction counsel?

A. That is correct.
Q. And you're familiar with this operation?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. You said that -- did you testify that the

weapon had a hammer?
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A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Are you familiar with single-action?

A. I am, yes.

Q. Are you familiar with double-action?

A. I am.

Q. Do you understand what -- how this weapon could

be fired?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And could it be fired -- could it be fired
in either single-action or double-action? |

A. That's correct. Both.

Q. Okay. Would you explain to the Court what this
weapon would operate —- how the weapon would operate if it
were fired in double-action?

A. The double-action mode was where you just use the
trigger itself. It has a heavier pull. What I mean by pull,
there's a weight to the spring that's within this firearm; so
it takes a stronger pull if it's double action. Double-action
meaning that you pull on the trigger, the hammer comes back
and releases itself in one motion. |

In single-action, you visibly have to cock it
back, the hammer, and then release it with the trigger pull,
which is much lighter than a double —- double-action pull.

Q. And trigger pull, is that measured in pounds?
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this weapon in both modes of firing was?

A, Normally it is, yes.

Q. Okay. Do you recall what the trigger pull for

A. I believe in the double-action mode, which you
bull the trigger and the hammer comes back and then releases,
that's between -- I think around 12 to 13 pounds on up to 15,
16-pound pull. There's a variation in the -- this weapon.

And then on a single-action pull, which is much
lighter, the hammer is brought back physically. Then release
with the trigger pull is around three to four pounds. So it's
much lighter.

0. You stated earlier that this weapon has a
revolver action?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Based upon that type of operation -- well,
I withdraw that question.

Were you able, through the evidence you were
provided —-- well, what evidence were you provided that would
have allowed you to determine what type of round was fired
first or second, assuming that two rounds were fired from this
weapon and the weapon not disturbed?

A. ' There was —-

Q. Do you understand that question?

A. Yes.
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Q. Okay.

A. There was a firearms workup sheet, laboratory
firearms workup sheet, which indiéates which cylinders had
been fired. In this case, there's -- it's a six-cylinder
weapon with our -- not -- I'm sorry, six-chambered-cylindered
weapon. First two chambers that were fired showed that these
two cartridges —-- one was a .45 Colt cartridge the other one>
was a .410 shotgun cartridge. The rest of the cylinders --
the rest of the chambers, I'm sorry, were unfired so the
ammunition was still live inside those chambers. So two of
them had been fired.

Q. And that cylinder only revolves in one direction.
Right?

A. That's correct.

0. And that doesn't matter whether it's
single-action or double-action?

A. No, it doesn't.

Q. So based on that, are you able to determine which

round was fired first?

A. During -- from the rotation, yes, you can.

Q. From the rotation?

A. Yes.

Q. So all you have to do -- and when you fire this

weapon, does the spent cartridge remain in that cylinder?
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A. It does. It does not eject. It takes ﬁanual
operation to remove those cartridges.

Q. And were you able to determine, based upon what
evidence you had, what round was fired first?

A. Yes. It would be -- in this particular case, it
was the Colt .45 -- long Colt cartridge that was fired first.

Q. Okay. Did that cartridge or projectile have any
specific or special qualities? In other —-- are you familiar
with the term "fragmentary round"?

A. Oh, you're talking about the -- the -- yeah —-
the round itself. Yes. Excuse me.

The .45 Colt ammunition is designed, in this
particular case, to fragment upon, you know, striking an
object; in other words, it comes apart. It does not stay
together.

Q. And you've stated -- you've testified that the
first round fired was that .45?

A. That's correct.

Q. And the second round was?

A. The .410.

Q. Okay. And that has a small -- what would you
call it? -- a BB type of projectile or shotgun?

A. Well, yeah. They had a shotgun -- shotgun rounds

normally have -- they do have a solid projectile, which is
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called a shotgun slug; you'll see a lot of deer hunters use

these. Also, law enforcement does use this particular type of

rounds. The -- in this particular case, it had, I believe,

three .45, .40 -- to .40- to .45-caliber ball, lead balls that
are within this cartridge.

Q. Okay. And let's go back to a slug type of
projectile. You said a lot of deer hunters would use that?

A. Deer hunters, yes.

Q. Okay. And is there a special place —- why would
they use a shotgun slug and fire that instead of a rifle
bullet?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Relevance.

MR. MALONE: It's will —- it will become --

THE COURT: Why is that relevant? Because that
wasn't used here.

MR. MALONE: Okay.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Is there a -- okay. I'll withdraw that question,
and I'il lay a foundation for the next one.

Are you familiar with a term -- and -- of
deflection?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Okay. Are bullets such as a -- are projectiles

such as bullets or -- I don't know what you called it -- a
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shotgun BB type of -- are they prone to deflection?

A. Oh, absolutely.

Q. Okay. Did defect- -- deflection figure into any
of your opinions that you formed in this case?

A. The possibility exists, yes.

Q. Okay. Is a shotgun -- so your testimony is that
projectiles such as a .45 sl- -- a .45 bullet is prone to
deflection. Correct?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Okay. And what can it be deflected by?

A. Any hard surface would naturally deflect it.
And, you know, even some soft tissue. I've seen bullets that
have deflected even in soft tissue. They expand too quickly

and they will deflect. High velocity cartridges, which are in

0. And are you familiar with any of the literature
showing that leaves or brush can deflect a projectile in that
literature?

A. Oh, yes. Especially in a high-velocity
cartridges. Those are traveling at around 3,400 feet per
second and greater. Even a raindrop will deflect them.

Q. And you mentioned earlier that hunters will often
use a shotgun slug. Correct?

A. Not necessarily, but in -- when using a shotgun,
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they normally do, yes.
Q. And is there any reason for that?
MR. JOHNSON: Same objection.
MR. MALIONE: Well, are they —-- let me ;ephrase.
THE COURT: All right.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. -+ Is a shotgun slug‘as prone to deflection as a
projéétile? |
A. Oh, yes, it would be.

0. It is?

A. Yes.
Q. Okay.
A. Yes. It's a slower-moving projectile.

Q. Okay. So it -- it is not better in brush or
other cover?

A. No. That -- that would still deflect that.

Q. Okay. Now, in your previous preparation for
testimony, did you have an opportunity to examine a couch that
was found at the Leibel residence?

A. Yes, 1 did.

Q. I forget or not —— I forget if you went to the

-Leibel residence?

A, I did at one time, yes.

Q. Okay. And that was in preparation for your
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previous testimony at trial?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. At that time, you didn't -- did you
observe the couch there?

A. No. There was a —- I remember the residence was
empty, as far as I remember.

0. Okay. Did that residence have much forensic
value for you at that point when it had been stripped of its
furnishings?.

A. No, not really.

Q. Have you had an opportunity to review —- have you
had an opportunity to review photographs?

A. Oh,'I have, vyes.

Q. Okay. And describe the photographs that you
found relevant to your -- any opinions you formed.

A. The photographs that I viewed were the ones where
the forensic investigation section of the Washoe County
Sheriff's Office Crime Lab were present. There was an

individual who had sat upon this particular -- it was a

_couch/sofa. And also there was some yellow probes that were

being utilized at the time to try and show trajectory to a
hole through the sofa to a hole in the wall that was behind
it.

Q. Okay. And those rods are also called trajectory
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rods?

A. At the time, yes. It comes in a kit.

Q. Okay.

A. And they call it trajectory kit.

Q. Okay. And you may have used, actually, those
rods —--

A. T have yes.

0. —— themself? I mean, those same ones.

A. Most likely, yes.

Q. Okay. Did you determine -- were you able to
determine —- I -- let me withdraw that. Is there anything in
a couch that could cause deflection of a projectile -- a gun
projectile?

A. Yes. There would be wooden frame, metal frames.

Even if, depending on the cover itself, was it a flexible
cover that could actually deflect the bullet? Was it a hard
cover that could deflect, you know, the projectile itself?
There are a number of variables.

Q. Are you —-- are you aware of whether or not
springs are located commonly in couches?

A. I think in the recliner type of chairs and
couches, yes.

Q. And what type of couch was this?

A. I don't know the brand name. But I do —-
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Q. Is it a recliner? Let me re- —-
Do you know if this was a recliner couch?
A. Yes, it was.

Q. And you were able to observe it in photographs?

A.  Yes.
Q. And you were also able to examine it personally?
A. Personally, I did ex- -- well, when you say

"examine," I didn't take it apart or anything. I just viewed
this particular item.

0. You were able to view it, and that was in the
Douglas County Sheriff's Office evidentiary locker?

A. Yes. The evidence section, yes.

Q. Okay. Did you observe whether the couch had been
examined in any way to see if anything had deflected off its
internal structure?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Lack of personal
knowledge.

THE COURT: Overruled. The question was were you
able to examine it to determine that.

MR. MALONE: He said he --

MR. JOHNSON: It's not a question. It's —-

THE COURT: No. Stop. Stop. It's overruled.
The question is appropriate.

Go ahead.
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BY MR. MALONE:
Q. So you personally examined this couch?

THE COURT: You didn't have him answer that

question, either. Do you want have him answer that question?

MR. MALONE: Oh, oh. Okay. I thought it did

with the --
THE COURT: I overruled the objection.

BY MR. MAIONE:

Q. You were able —-- you were able to -- were you

able to examine this couch?
A. Visibly, yes.
0. This same couch?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And when you say "visibly," you did not

take it apart or disassemble it?

A. That is correct.

Q. Actually, did you notice anything broken about

the couch?
A. One of the —- yeah. Yes. One of the backs

broken. And even when the technician brought it out, it

was

was

kind of flopping around. So it was -- you could tell that

it -- the back was broken.
Q. Okay. You didn't take the back apart?

A. No, no, no.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

192



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

C\-\ C
. 5 A
o) oy
4 7

Q. But the technician did accidenﬁally or he —— you
could see it moving?

A. It was -- if I recall, it was a female
technician, and I could just see it moving. I don't know. I
don't think she took it apart or did anything. I can't
recall.

Q. Were you able to determine whether the back was
broken on it?

A. Well, it certainly looked like it, yes.

Q. Okay. Were you able to determine whether the
couch had been disassembled to check for any evidence of
deflection off of its internal structure?

A. Not visibly, no.

Q. In the -- is it correct to say that it showed no
signs of —- of being examined internally?

THE COURT: Repeat that question, please.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Would it be fair to say that‘you saw not -- no
signs or evidence that it had been -- that the internal
structure had been examined?

A. Visibly, I could not tell.

Q. Were you -- have you found any reports that show
that it was subject to internal examination?.

A, I have not seen any reports.
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Q. Okay. And specifically, if you were to examine
this couch, would you be looking for evidence of deflection
off its internal structure?

A. Yes, that is one of the examinations I would have
to perform.

0. Okay. That would have been a standard
examination?

A. It would have.

Q. Okay. Based on that, you're familiar with -- I
withdraw that question -- that -- that part of the question.

Are you familiar with a report generated by the

prosecution in this case by Matthew Noedel?

A. I have seen Mr. Noedel's report, yes.

Q. You —- and you've had an opportunity to review
it --

A. I have. l

Q. —— as much as you needed to. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you're familiar with -- withdraw that
question.

Would it be fair to say that he established one
trajectory path in that report? Well, let me —-- let me --
okay. You do know which —-- you've testified that the .45

projectile was fired first?
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A. That is correct.
Q. Did that ever -- that did have a trajection —-
trajectory. Correct?
A, AYes.
Q. Okay. And you have some rods that are off to
your side there. Correct?
A. That is correct.
- MR. MALONE: Your Honor, may I get a chair to
move out to this area?
THE COURT: Yeah. You can slide a chair out.
MR. MALONE: Thank you. Can I take your chair?
I'll take my chair -- I got it.
MR. JOHNSON: You're welcome to use my chair if I
take my —-
THE COURT: We've got one. Thank you, Mr.
Johnson. I appreciate it.
MR. MAIONE: Mr. Mausert, I would like to use you
as a dummy.
MR. MAUSERT: That's nét the first time. I'm a
professional dummy.
THE COURT: Mr. Mausert, you've found your
highest, best use.
BY MR. MAIONE:

Q. Did you bring any tape with you?
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A. Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: I suppose before we go further, I
would just ask for more foundation to be laid before he offers
an opinion.

MR. MAIONE: Okay. I am —-

MR. MAUSERT: I can establish —-

MR. JOHNSON: I object to foundation.

MR. MAUSERT: I can establish my foundation as a
dummy . |

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, may we —-—

THE COURT: Mr. Mausert, I apologize for my
comments, and I appreciate your service to this Court and to
all of the courts. You serve in.

MR. MAUSERT: You don't have to apologize, Judge.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Have you been able to examine evidence in this
case sufficiently that you've been able to establish a
trajectory or possible trajectory through Harry Leibel's body?
A. I have, vyes.

MR. JOHNSON: Same objection as to the foundation
for his opinion.

MR. MAIONE: The foundation being?

THE COURT: That -- that -- that objection is

sustained. T think you need to ask him some questions about
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how he came to that opinion.

One second. Are you okay?

THE COURT CLERK: Yes. She just brought me some
work.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

I'm sorry, sir. Go ahead.

MR. MALONE: Mr. Mausert, you can stay there. It
might take me a little while.

THE COURT: That's —-- you know, I apologize. I
think I just recalled something that I need to put on the
record here. And it did not occur to me until just this
moment. I think that, at one point, Mr. Mausert represented
my brother on some financial issues or --

MR. MAUSERT: Mortgage, probably foreclosures.

THE COURT: A maybe —-- a mortgage foreclosure.

MR. MAUSERT: I have done that for seven years.

. THE COURT: I had completely forgotten that, and
I have no bias either —- I don't think that that's ongoing,
and I think it was resolved many years ago.

MR. MAUSERT: I no longer have any mortgage
clientsf I -- we stopped -- the program, it changed. It
morphed at the end of 2016.

THE COURT: Well, I don't even know whether you

recall my brother or not. But I would say that —-

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

197

AT



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

MR. MAUSERT: I vaguely -- I just -- I vaguely
recall that you may have referred him to me. I'm ﬂot sure.

THE COURT: I have no bias either for or against
the State or Ms. Leibel in this matter as a result of that.
But it -- I just remembered it, and I thought I should tell
everyone. And I'm going to give -- I'll.give you an

opportunity to talk to your client about that out of my

. presence if you want, and I'll give you the opportunity to

think about it out of my presence.

It was not something that I was involved in, in
any discussions and in any way. And I'm not even.certain what
the ultimate outcome of that was. So, Mr. Johnson, if you
need some time to think about that, sir.

MR. JOHNSON: No, Your Honor. I have no
objection. If you have no bias, I have no objection.

MR. MAIONE: I think I need to make a record with
my client -- or make a record that I've advised -- that
I've —

THE COURT: That you'vé spoken —

MR. MALONE: -- that I've consulted with my
client.

THE COURT: Yeah. And I will give you a chance
to do that out of my presence.

MR. MAILONE: Do you want to do that at a normal
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break?

THE COURT: I'll do it whatever you'd like.

MR. MALONE: I think we should continue till a
normal break occurs.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, which will be in about
15 minutes. And I'm sorry for interrupting, but it just
occurred to me. Go ahead.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. In preparation for your testimony were you able
to review autopsy reports?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Was there -- were you able to interview —- to
review an autopsy report prepared by Dr. Bennet Omalu?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did that help you develop a theory
regarding trajectory of the .45 bullet through Harry Leibel's
torso?

A, In a manner it did, yes.

Q. ‘Okay. The -— were you able to review the other
autopsy report prepared by Piotr Kubiczek?

A.. At the Washoe County --

Q. Medical examiner?

A. —— medical examiner's, yes.

Q. I don't know why I would think you would remember
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the name. I'm sorry. So you reviewed both of those?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. And you reviewed the Noedel report?
A. Yes, I have.
Q. Okay.
MR. MALONE: And is it correct that we know that
there was a bullet defect that entered Mr. Leibel -- can I
speak in a -- it will be a compound question, faster?
THE COURT: Well, let me just -- go ahead. 1It's
hard for me to rule on a question you haven't asked yet.
MR. MALONE: Thank you.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Is it accurate to say that there was a bullet
defect transecting the upper portion of Mr. Leibel's chest?
A. That's correct.
Q. Okay. And if you could hand me one of your rods.
Okay. Now this rod is made of wood. Correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. And the ones that you described earlier are
yellow fiberglass?
A. Oh, with the exception of one it's what we call
the base probe and it's made of metal.
Q. Okay. Do you have a preference‘for this typé of

rod that's made of wood?
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A. I do, yes.

Q. Okay. And explain -- if you can explain?

A. The first probe that is normally utilized in a
hole in a wall as such is a metal probe. This is a base probe
to where you can screw on a fiberglass probe, which is much
lighter than the hea- -- than the metal one.

We started ——- when I say "we," I've been retired
from the Washoe County Crime Lab for, gosh, going on 13,
14 years now. And we started the —- the metal probe is too
heavy. It enlarged the hole you were actually using the probe
in, which is -- is not going to give you a real good reading
on a trajectory analysis when that hole has been enlarged. So
there's always about a 5 percent leeway that you work with
anyway. And it's going to be greater than that, but that
hole's been enlarged. |

So we started using a much lighter probe that is
closer to the -- and they come in -- the dowels, and that's

what they're called, come in different sizes, diameters. So

. you try and match that with the hole size. And it's much

lighter, and you don't -- you don't distort much of the hole
itself using a much, much lighter wooden dowel.

Also that's in that kit is a laser. 1It's what we
call like a little bullet laser. It's a small, cylindrical,

probably, at the most, a half-inch in diameter. And you get a
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red laser beam that you can turn it on. That, we would start
not in the whole, but we would actually start from the
exterior and point that laser at the hole. And this is going
to give us a trajectory analysis at a different distances.

So -- and it's nondestructive, noninvasive. So if you can use
the laser, you should use fhe laser. And I think now today,
when you buy the kit, they provide that type of training.

They did not provide that for us when we bought it back in the
'90s, the late '90s, turn of the 21st century when we bought
those kits.

So it was determined by our firearms examiner --
and I agreed with him -- that, yeah, we should be using
something much lighter than what was being provided in the
kit. Because the further out you get, the tendency of the
weight factor starts to -— starts to enlarge that hole as
gravity takes over. And if you're looking at a long distance,
that'é when you want to use the laser first.

Q. So wooden dowels are better?

A. I think they are, yes. And other firearm
examiners think so, also.

Q. And you'd have the dowels —- when you —-— when you
would do this, you would use the dowels of the correct
diameter for the projectile?

A. Yes.
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Q. And did you observe any distortion of the

substrate -- I mean, in here I'm saying drywall and/or fabric
covering —-- in your observations of the photographs in this
case?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So it looked like they've been damaged by
the meaéuring instrument?

A. It did, potentially.

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. ILeading. This is
definitely not a hostile witness.

THE COURT: Try to avoid leading. Okay?

MR. MALONE: Okay. Sorry. Hard. I fall back
onto 1it.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Were you -- were you able to observe any
distortion that you would attribute to improper roddin??

A. Excuse me. Yes. ' In the -- both photograph and
then looking at the hole in the couch back, in the -- it
looked like it was distorted.

Q. And I'm just going to go back and finish this
section of this inquiry after that. You testified already
thaf you don't know if there was deflection and -- from the
shot that you observed in the couch. Correct?

A. That's correct.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

203 | . 2"5\«(0



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

O G

Q. And is it -- did that describe the path of that
bullet? Not the -- not the -- for accuracy purposes. But
where did the>bullet enter? Where was actually a shotqun —--
shotgun round enter?

A. It entered the sofa cushion back.

Q. And that would have been the second shot?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And then where did it -

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Foundation for whether
that was the second or the first shot.

THE COURT: Well, he's already testified that the
first shot —--

MR. JOHNSON: The defect.

THE COURT: Pardon?

MR. JOHNSON: Whether the defect was the first or
second shot.

MR. MALONE: That's fair. We can do that.

THE COURT: Well, I think I understand that he's
talking about the second shot right now.

"MR. MALONE: The first shot —--

THE COURT: You can clarify that if you want.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. The first shot never exited, in large form,

Mr. Leilbel's body?
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A. That's correct.
Q. Okay. There was one small part of a fragmentary
round that ended up in his left bicep. Correct?
| A. Yeah.
Q. That they had found in his robe or something like
that?
THE COURT: And, Counsel, I recall that evidence
from the trial.
MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: So I knew what he was talking about.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. So the second shot is the shotgun round?
A. That's correct. |
THE INTERPRETER: Is the shot --
MR. MALONE: Shotgun round, the .410 shotgun
shell.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Now that did ——.that did -- can you describe,
sort of, in rough terms where that shot went?
A. The shotgun shell?
Q. .Yes.
A. That one had deflected on the back of
Mr. Leibel's hand, left hand.

Q. Left hand?
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A. Left hand.

Also, it deflected off tﬁe shoulder of Mr. Leibel
and then into the cushion and then through the cushion and
into the wall behind.

Q. Based on the examination that was performed at
the scene, is any trajectory based upon -- is any trajectory

conclusion, based upon that evidence, possible when you take

into account deflection?

MR. JOHNSON: Just wént to confirm the
foundation. I didn't hear the --

MR. MALONE: This is the shotgun round.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JOHNSON: He said it wasn't -- it wasn't
clear from the question what he’s basing his oéinion on.

MR. MALONE: It -- can you think --

THE COURT: Well, I think it's —— I think he's
already testified that it was based on his —-- his —-

MR. JOHNSON: Just want to make sure there's
nothing else. Okay.

THE COURT: Yeah, he's got a foundation there.

Go ahead.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Mr. Billau, is it possible that that second shot

was deflected by the couch or some other structure?
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A. Oh, vyes.

Q. Okay.

A. If it entered the couch and exited the couch,
that's —---there is a high probability that some deflection
could have occurred.

Q. And that's high probability?

A. I would say so, yes.

Q. Okay. So any analysis of gun position and bullet
track would be suspect?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, the first shot, as we said -- would
you say that that shot exited the body or...

A. No. It was still —-- it had fragmented, and from
the X-rays that I were given, and these are just copies of the
X-rays, that the bullet had fragmented and the fragments were
still inside Mr. Leibel.

Q. Okay. What -- was any fragment outside the body?

A. There was one. They found, I believe, one that
was in, as you had noted, in his left bicep area in his
bathrobe.

Q. Now, you're aware —- you observed the X-rays or
the photographs of X—rayg. Right?

A. Photograph of the X-rays, that's correct.

Q. And if I -- would you tell me where to point
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this -- well, I'm -- is this where they ended up in this area
here?

MR. JOHNSON: Meaning?

THE COURT: Wait, wait, wait, wait, wait. That
question is objectionable. \

MR. MAIONE: I know. I know.

THE COURT: Okay. Let's try again.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Would you like to take the point -- would you
please take the pointer and point to the Judge where those
fragments ended up. And you can use Mr. Mausert's body.

THE COURT: This is based on the testimony that
you reviewed of Dr. Omalu and of the medical examiner?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. And their reports.

THE COURT: And their reports?

THE WITNESS: And their reports. That is
correct.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And, Mr. Billau, the X-rays, as well? Did you
use that as a basis of reference?

A. I observed the X-rays -- they were photostat
copies of the X-rays.

Q. In those X-rays, you can observe fragmented —-—

bullet fragments?
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A. That's correct.

Q. And there were roughly how many -— that —-- this
you explained earlier that this round, this .45 pistol round
is meant to fragment. Right?

A. That is correct. That's the way that the
manufacturer actually makes these particular bullets.

Q. And why do they make them like that?

THE COURT: To kill people. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: Same thing. Yes, thank you, Your
Honor.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Would you point to the section of Mr. Mausert's
body corresponding to where the fragments were found in
Mr. Leibel?

MR. JOHNSON: To be clear, we aré talking about
the first bullet now, not the second bullet? |

THE WITNESS: Yeah, the second bullet.

THE COURT: I think the first bullet. That's
exactly correct, sir.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And our position is that the second bullet

doesn't matter because the evidence is basically not developed

enough --

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Argument —— we're not
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arguing.

THE COURT: Yeah, well ——

(Multiple speakers.)
kInterruption by the court reporter.)

MR. MALONE: 1I'll withdraw my question.

THE COURT: Here is what will go on the record:
This question relates only to the first shot. Go ahead.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And let me -- from your understanding of the
other reports and the information you had, what shot killed
Mr. Leibel? Was that not clear?

Is it true that the first shot was the
basically —-—

A. Yes.

Q. —-— mortal shot?

A. It was the fatal shot.

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Lack of expertise of
this witness to determine how he died.

MR. MALONE: I --

THE COURT: Well, here is the thing. I remember
the testimony from the trial very well, and it was very clear
from the testimony of the trial, the first shot -- which is
the .45 shot -- was fatal and was not survivable. And that's

the status of the trial record.
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.discussion, please, sir, let me know.

MR. JOHNSON: Correct. I thought he was making
an opinion about whether the second shot could ha&e killed him
if the first one didn't.

THE COURT: Well, right now, all we are going to
talk about is the first shot, and we've made that clear.

Now, you've got a little demonstration that
you're going to do here for a few minutes.. Right?

MR. MALONE: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. We are going to take the
afternoon break.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

THE COURT: You'll talk with your client.

MR. MATONE: Yes.

THE COURT: Which you may do out of my presence.

We'll take 15 minutes. If you need longer than that for that

Mr. Billau, you are advised that the rule of
exclusion has been invoked. I believe you know what that
means.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: I believe you know what that means,
but I have instructed you previously: Do not talk with anyone
other than the attorneys in this case --

THE WITNESS: I understand.
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THE COURT: -- until we come back.
Thank you very much.
(A break was taken.)

THE COURT: Thank you. Everyone please have a
seat. I appreciate it.

We are all back in session. All the attorneys
are here. Ms. Leibel is here. The interpreter is here. The
witness has returned to the witness stand.

And, Mr. Malone, did you have an opportunity to
talk to your client about what I raised before?

MR. MAIONE: Yes, I did, Your Honor. I was able

to speak to her —-— with Tatiana, the interpreter. Based
upon -- it's my understanding based upon my consultation with
her -- or after my consultation with her that she wishes to

waive any conflict and have you proceed as the judge.

THE COURT: Okay. And -- and, so, Ms. Leibel —-
you may have a seat, ma'am. Thank you very much. I
appreciate it.

Did you have an adequate opportunity to talk to
your attorney about the issue that I raised that apparently,
at one point, Mr. Mausert represented my brother on -- in some
issue.

THE DEFENDANT (In English): Yeah. Issue.

THE DEFENDANT (Through the Interpreter): Yes,
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Your Honor.

THE COURT: And Mr. Malone tells me that --
although I don't believe that there is any conflict, that
you're willing to go forward without that being an issue?

THE DEFENDANT (Through the Interpreter): I
believe we should go forward.

THE COURT: With me being the judge?

DEFENDANT (Through the Interpreter): 1It's not a
problem.

Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT (In English): Thank you.

THE COURT: And have you had enough time to talk
to your lawyer about that?

THE DEFENDANT (In English): Yes.

THE DEFENDANT (Through the Interpreter): Yes.

THE COURT: Again, for the record, I'm not privy

- to any details. I love my brother more than anything in the

world, but it's not a factor in this case and I have no bias
for or against either side as a result of that or as a result
of anything else. And I have a duty to hear cases, and, in
conformance with that duty, I'm going to hear this one. And
we will move forward. Thank you very much. I appreciate the

time.
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MR. MAIONE: Thank you very much.
THE DEFENDANT (In English): Thank you.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Mr. Billau, will you please approach Mr. Mausert?

A. (The witness complies.) Left side —- the right
side. |

Q. Using your rod, would you please demonstrate for

us what you believe the path of the second -- the first bullet
was?

A. That's correct. The projectile had entered the
right-side upper torso area.

THE COURT: Mr. Johnson, you are free to move
about the courtroom as you need, sir.

MR. JOHNSON: Wanted to make sure.

THE WITNESS: And this is from my review of the
autopsy report. And the projectile transected through the
upper torso towards his left shoulder/armpit area, which
fragments were within this area of his torso.

THE COURT: And so, for the record, you are —-
you are entering under his right arm --

THE WITNESS: That's correct.

THE COURT: -- going in a slightly upward
direction so that the end of your dowel or your rod —-—

THE WITNESS: Yes.
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THE COURT: -- is just --

THE WITNESS: 1In this area.

-THE COURT: -- below his shoulder on -- below his
left shoulder; is that correct, sir?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And do you know the name of this bone right here?

THE COURT: Well, the one that you're pointing to'
is the bone on his upper left arm; is that correct?

MR. MALONE: Correct. Upper left arm.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, I don't.

MR. MAIONE: Can I lead? With -- well —--

THE COURT: He doesn't know, so...

MR. MALONE: You're good. We are good.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. So did you demonstrate that the fragments were
located on the inner aspect of his upper arm?

A. That's correét.

Q. And now would you please place Mr. Mausert's
certificates hand where you think that Mr. Leibel's right arm
was?

A. (The witness complies.)

Q. At -- at the time —-
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THE COURT: Put his hand where he thinks his
right arm was.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Would you please place Mr, Mausert's right arm in
the position you —-- that represents your understanding or
determination of Mr. Leibel's right arm? In other words, just
describe what you think happened here.

A. In this particular case, if he's holding the
weapon, he would be cradling the weapon such as this to
discharge the weapon. And I don't -- this is where I come in
disagreement with some of the analysis. We don't really know
what position Mr. Leibel was in because he's a moving —— he's
moving. And when you're looking at trajectory, the only time
you can be absolutely sure of your trajectory, it has to be a
stationary object. So you have a sofa that's movable, and you
have the victim, which is movable. But to undefstand how this
trajectory works and how they've demonstrated and also from
the autopsy reports that this projectile had entered —-

THE éOURT: Can I interrupt? When you say "they
demonstrated, " please define that, please.

THE WITNESS: ©Oh, I'm sorry. In Mr. Noedel's
report. That's what I mean by "they." I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: From his report, he even indicates
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that he's in a --
MR. JOHNSON: At this point, I'm going to object
to narrative. There has to be, like, questions asked of the

witness.

- BY MR. MAIONE:

Q. What did you see next?

THE COURT: Well, no. The question —— I
appreciate that, Mr. Johnson, but the question was what, in
your opinion, do you believe happened. And he can --

MR. JOHNSON: He said he didn't know for sure is
what I recall the testimony being. And then he went on his
long narrative.

THE COURT: Thank you. Your objection is

overruled.

You can say.

THE WITNESS: Okay. I believe what had
happened -- and this is one of -- just one of the scenarios.
There are -- because there's so many variables in movement

here. One of the scenarios Mr. Noedel had explained in his
report; I present another scenario, and this is where the arm
is elevated, the weapon is -- the stock of the weapon is out
here. He's not even touching that. You have the barrel éf
the weapon 18 and a half inches long. And so you have a

21-inch -- including to reach the trigger, a 2l1-inch traj- --—
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distance is what Mr. Noedel's report indicates. And I can't
dispute that.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. From —-- from where, please.

THE COURT: And I'm sorry to interrupt. I
apologize. But from where?

THE WITNESS: 21 inches.

MR. MAIONE: Muzzle to barrel.

THE WITNESS: Twenty-one inches from the muzzle
of the weapon, the end of the barrel, to the trigger, where
he's able to reach that trigger.

THE COURT: Can you make this an imaginary weapon

and —-

MR. MAUSERT: The barrel is here.

MR. MALONE: So now we're not describing
trajectory?

THE WITNESS: No. I had marked 21 inches on
this.

THE COURT: Only one person speak at a time,
please.

MR. MAIONE: Let me move Mr. Mausert's arm -- you
want to move somewhere? Where do you want me to put
Mr. Mausert's arm?

THE WITNESS: Okay. I want you to sit right
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there. Okay. The weapon is here. Now —--—

THE COURT: Mr. Billau, do you know what end you
marked your 21 inches from?

THE WITNESS: Yes. I do. Right here. It has
the little red on it.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: So we have 21 inches,
18-and-a-half-inch barrel so we can offset that according to
Mr. Noedel's report, which is, he says, the distance
patterning that he examined, that he provided, was an offset
of two to —- anywhere from two to six inches offset. So the
barrel is not —-- it's not a contact wound. 1It's offset. So
you get this soot pattern. That's what he's basing if on.

All right. So if we take -- and this is where my
analysis comes in.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. I can hold that.

A. Yeah. Let's offset it approximately fhree
inches. Yeah, see, about three inches. Right about there.
Now, they take —— he's taken his measurements from the
victim's thumb, and the hand is bent. And it shows this in an
autopsy photograph. Well, if the hand is bent, the arm is
slightly bent at the elbow slightly. Well, with the thumb,

it's —— it becomes difficult to pull the trigger. But if we
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look, the index and the middle fingers reach that extension.
So.-- and that was never brought out, and there's no
photographs or anything in the reports that I read that
indicate that -- they're just using the thumb.

And, again, it's being measured in autopsy with
the hand down. If you extend the hand, the thumb can still
reach the trigger.

0. You —— Mr. Billau, let's move —-- in actuality -—-

THE COURT: Well, wait a minute. So —-- okay.

All right. No. Go ahead. Please go ahead. I'm not going to
go there.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. But you testified previously that the trigger
pull in single-action is three pounds?

) A. That is correct.

Q. In this case, would it be fair to say this is
trigger push?

A. Yes,.it is.

Q. Push. And did you bring a digital scale?

A. There is. I do have a scale.

THE WiTNESS: I think you can relax.

MR. MALONE: And, Your Honor, at this point, I am
going to ask the Court -- you're the trief of fact —— to exert

three pounds of pressure with your finger to determine how
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difficult that is. And we can have the prosecutor do the same
thing.

THE COURT: As -- all right. Do you have an
objection to that?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. Your finger is not the same
as Harry Leibel's, and, therefore, it's not relevant to the
determination of this Court.

THE COURT: Three pounds is still three pounds,
isn't it?

MR. JOHNSON: It is, but how difficult it is for
you 1is not necessarily how difficult it was for Harry Leibel
three years ago; so it's not —- it doesn't help you with
anything for your determination of the facts.

THE COURT: My —-- well, here's —-- here's the --
here is what you're doing, is you're demonstrating, again,
that, in fact, under your theory, Mr. Leibel may have taken
his own life. There was a great deal of testimony and
evidence about that at the time of trial. Now, I don't recall
a scale, and I don't recall the -- anybody mentioning or
testing three pounds of push. But the problem is that that
evidence was presented at trial.

And tell me what me pushing on a scale is going
to demonstraté, sir.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, the evidence that was
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produced by the defense was incomplete. The Court ruled that
Mr. Billau's testimony regarding trajectory was inadmissible
and basically all of his testimony at that point in time was
shut down and did not proqeed. What my demon- -- what this —--
the purpose of calling him is to have the same witﬁess and
have a demon- -—- have an —-- information to the Court as to
what information and testimony would have been produced, had
the notice been proper, had the notice from defense counsel
been proper and his opinion not have been truncated and cut
off prematurely. That's all it is.
THE COURT: Okay. I don't think I need to weigh
three pounds on the scale --
MR. MALONE: Okay.
THE-COURT: —— in order to make that
determination.
MR. MAIONE: We are good.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. MALONE: |
Q. Mr. Billau, have you been able to exert three
pounds of pressure using this scale?
A. Not this particular scale, but another scale,
yes.
Q. Okay. With your index finger?

A. Yes.
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Q. And is that possible for you to do? - -
A, Oh, yes.

0. Whether you -- how difficult was that?
A. Not difficult at all.

Q. And the aCtiQn in the -- the action of this

weapon in double-action, you testified previously that the

trigger pull or push in this case would be 13 to 16 points?

A. That's correct.
Q. You may have said 12. I forgot.
A. Yeah. I think it was 12 to 16.
Q. Thank you. So with --

MR. MAUSERT: May I go?

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Oh. How do you, you know —-- your testimony was
that -- I think your trajectory was in this direction?

A. That's correct.
0. So towards the -- the projectile would have
impacted on the upper part of Mr. --
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.
MR. MALONE: It's been -- it's already been
testified to.
THE COURT: It's already -- well, he's just

recounting the testimony. So, overruled.

MR. MALONE: I'm going to have a question based
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upon this.
THE COURT: I recall his testimony. Go ahead.
MR. MALONE: So the impact point-woﬁld have been
roughly here.

A. Yes, that's correct.

THE COURT: The impact point?

THE WITNESS: The terminus point.

THE COURT: That's different than the impact
point.

THE WITNESS: That's correct.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And I am referring to an internal impact point
against the bone.

A.  Correct.

MR. JOHNSON: [Indiscernible.]

MR. MALONE: What?

MR. JOHNSON: So -- nothing. B
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. So do you believe -- you believe that the —- is
it correct that the -- you've already testified that your
understanding is the bullet remained in Mr. Leibel's body for
the most part?

A. For the most part, that's correct.

Q. How did the fragments end up a little bit lower?
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A. They are fragments. They go in different
directions.

Q. Okay. Would they tend to go in a different

direction if they impact a hard bod- —-- object in Mr. Leibel's
body?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Were you able to review any medical

opinions that enhanced your knowledge of this physiology and
the physics of the impact?
A. Weil, not that I can recall at this time._
Q. Well, do you remember reading Dr. Omalu's report?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. Did he describe any broken bones or anything that
allows you to determine the impact point?
A. Well, part of the report, I recall, was where --
I believe the clavicle was also broken. So that would be a
fragment that had struck the back part of the shoulder area,
the clavicle area. And then there's another bone up here.
And I can't remember the name of it, that was damaged
conéiderably. And that was up in the shoulder area.
MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I think --
THE COURT: The witness is pointing at his upper
left shoulder.

MR. MAIONE: And, Your Honor, I think I can
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refresh the witness's recollection with almost anything. And
if I'm allowed to say the name of the joint, would that be
appropriate?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.

MR. MAIONE: I -- that is why I've asked.

THE COURT: Well, first of all, I don't think you
can refresh his recollection by just telling him the answer.
He could review a document or somethiﬁg.

MR. MALONE: Oh. Okay.

THE COURT: But I don't think you can give him
the answer and say, "Do you remember that now?" So
Mr. Johnson is right. That is just...

| MR. MALONE: I'm trying to be really fast.
THE COURT: I understand, sir.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Were you able to determine, from the review of
the medical evidence, whether any force was applied to the top
part of Mr. —- portion of Mr. Leibel's upper arm?

A. Of any force that was applied?

Q. Force by the projectile.

A. Oh, yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
any further interpretation of a medical examiner's autopsy. I

don't believe that the -- there's any foundation laid that the
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witness is an expert on interpreting autopsy reports or
anything related to inside the body, the name of the joints;
he doesn't even know the name of the body part. And I don't
thiﬁk he's an expert nor does he have -- a foundation been |
laid to provide an opinion on what's going on inside the
person's body.

THE COURT: I believe that the question was,
essentially, did your review of the autopsy reports indicate
some force, not whether you could determine what that force
was. If there's something in the autopsy report that you
reviewed that says "the bullet was found here," or "it went
here," or "a fragment was found there," you could say that.

But I don't -- I don't believe this witness can
even testify that the -- that the force of the wound caused a
broken bone or anything like that. He doesn't have that
expertise.

MR. MAILONE: No, he certainly doesn't,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MALONE: But he does -- but we —— he —-
we're —— we've called him as an expert. We've demonstrated
specialized knowledge in ballistics, trajectory. And he's
able to then rely upon the opinion of otherwise —— he can use

otherwise inadmissible evidence. 1In other words, the previous
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trial transcript -- the previous trial -- in the previous
trial, Dr. Bennet Omalu testified regarding his opinion about
the projectile impact and its impact on Mr. Leibel's body. In
that evidence -- it's already in evidence..

THE COURT: I understand that. So the question'
has to be tailored so that the question is whether he's |
relying —- there was something that he's relying on from
Dr. Omalu's report or testimony that leads him to draw a
concluéion about trajectory.

MR. MALONE: Okay.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. In Dr. Omalu's report, did you learn anything
about damagé-to Mr. Leibel's left shoulder?

A. Yes, there was.

Q. Okay. Describe, please.

A. That the bullet had transected from the right in
an upward direction and terminated at the upper shoulder —-
left shoulder area -- excuse me —- and there was damage caused
to the bones up in that area.

Q. Did —-

A. And the X-rays also showed that.

THE COURT: Thank you.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And you viewed the X-rays?
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A. Yes, I have.

Q. And you as a —-- do you use —-- are you used to
using that as part of your analysis in gunshot wounds?

A. Oh, yes.

0. Viewing X-rays?

A. For a human, yes.

Q. And it's uéed -—- what do you use them for?

A. The trajectory.

Q. What do you look at the X-rays for? What do you
determine? |

A. Oh, you have a visual documentation now of what
occurred to that particular individual or that particular
wound.

Q. You -- is it right to say you can tell where the
bullet ended up in the human body if --

A. If you see it in the X-ray, yes.

0. Okay. And did you see that here?

A. We saw quite a bit of fragmentation, and you saw
the projectile itself. That's correct.

Q. Are you familiar with the effects of bullet
wounds?

A, Oh, vyes.

Q. Okay. In your opinion, would this arm be used ——

Harry Leibel's arm be usable after that point?
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MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Outside of this
witness's --
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. JOHNSON: -- knowledge.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Okay. So you can't answer.
A. No.
Q. Okay. So it's your testimony that Harry Leibel
could have fired the first --
MR. JOHNSON: Objection to leading. If he wants
to ask his opinion, he should ask what his opinion is.
MR. MALONE: I'm not —-
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. MALONE: I am. just restating the opinion.
THE COURT: Ask him his opinion. You don't have
to state it.
MR. MALONE: I don't even think I need to do
that, Your Honor. Thank you.
THE COURT: I've heard his opinion.
BY MR. MAILONE:
Q. Is there any —— okay. So this —-- Harry was
sitting on a couch; is that correct?
A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. This is a chair?
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A. . That's correct.
Q. Okay. The -- you're familiar with the
photographs of the couch?
A. Yes.
Q. And was the arm —-- the leg rest up on the couch
where Harry was sitting?
A. It appears to be, yes.
Q. If I can refresh your recollection maybe by
the —-
THE COURT: Well, wait a minute. He doesn't have
a faulty recollection. He said it appeared to be.
MR. MALONE: If I can show you a photograph of
the couch, would that help?
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Okay. On what side of the couch was Harry Leibel
sitting?
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Lac% of personal
khowledge.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. To your understanding from the -- okay.
- Did you see anything in any phoﬁographs that
would lead you to believe that he was sitting on one side of
the couch or the other?

A. It appears that —— my -- my experience and my
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visual knowledge just looking at the photographs, it appears
that he was —— as you're facing the couch, he was on the left
side.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
BY MR. MAIONE:

Q. And did you see any —— so withdraw that —-- that

‘premature question.

Was there anything on the looker's left -- that
would be I'm looking left —— that obstructed the right side of
Harry Leibel's body?

\ A. There it was an end table, I believe, with a lamp
on it. And there were several other items on that end table,
and that was right next to that sofa. That end table was wide
enough to where there was a space. If you take the table out,
there's about a two-and-a-half-foot space, and it was almost
touching the wall, that end table. So there's -- you have an
obstruction there. In other words, you can't get around that
sofa on Harry Leibel's right side. It would be the left side
as you're facing. So if you're facing the sofa, there is an
end table on the left side next to the sofa. And that's what

I saw in the photographs. I -— it wasn't at the scene when I

- was there.

THE INTERPRETER: Otherwise?

THE WITNESS: It wasn't at the scene when I was
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there.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Were you abie to view any diagrams that were
performed by law enforcement?

A. Yes.

MR. MALONE: Okay. If I could have this marked
as next. And mine consists of two pages.
THE COURT CLERK: Okay.
(Exhibit 15 marked for identification.)
MR. MAIONE: Are these the diagrams that you're
able to review?

A. Yes. Yes, they are.

Q. And is it -- do they show the —-- what has been
represented as location of the end table?

A. Yes, there is.

Q. Okay. So in yoﬁr opinion, would that end table
make it very difficult for a person to approach Mr. Leibel in
a —— that killing shot? The first shot?

| THE INTERPRETER: I'm sorry. And take what?
THE COURT: Make that killing shot, the first
shot.
TﬁE WITNESS: I'm -- excuse me. I'm referring to .

this particular item of evidence within the crime scene. It

would be evidentiary —-
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THE COURT: Wait a miﬁute. Wait a minute.

MR. MALONE: It's not e&idence yet.

THE COURT: Well --

MR. MALONE: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: That's right. 1It's the Exhibit
Number --

THE COURT CLERK: 15.

THE COURT: -- 15.

MR. JOHNSON: No objection to -- sorry. I
interrupted you, Your ﬁonor.

THE COURT: That's okay.

MR. JOHNSON: No objection to the two crime

photographs. I don't remember the exhibit number.

THE COURT: Okay. 15, it is. And do you have

others marked?

MR. MAIONE: I do.

THE COURT CLERK: No.

THE COURT: Are you going to mark them?

MR. MALONE: No. This —- these are copies,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. 15. No objection. 1It's

Go ahead and have him testify.

(Exhibit 15 admitted into évidence.)

/17

scene

in.
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BY MR. MALONE:

Q. What can you learn about -- froﬁ that diagram?

A. Well, that the end table is‘next to the sofé.

0. And why is that relevant?

A. Is it relevant?

Q. Why is it relevant?

A. Oh, that you can't get around it.

Q. Okay. And your first -- your opinion is that the
first shot was right to left in an upward trajectory.
Correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. In a sitting position, what, the rifle would be
inclined; is that correct?

A. No. It would be down.

Q. Down?

A. If a person is sitting upright, the weapon would
be in a downward angel.

Q. And, in your opinion, would the table obstruct
the angle of the weapon as well?

A, Yes.

Q.' Okay. And was there anything on the table that
would cause you to believe that -- that it looked disturbed
or —— in any way?

A. In the photographs that I viewed, it didn't
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appear that anything was disturbed.

Q. Did you notice anything on the table that was

subject to disturbance? In other words —-
A. I think there was a glass.of water.
THE COURT: Just a minute. Just a minute.

THE COURT CLERK: Are we marking those?

THE COURT: I don't know. I -- we —- he doesn't
get to look at photos here.

MR. MALONE: Okay. Until I mark it.

THE COURT: Yeah. Until you --

MR. MALONE: I just pulled it out.

THE COURT: -- for the record. And Mr. Johnson
gets to look at them first.

MR. MALONE: So we've admitted Exhibit Number 15.

This is my only copy of the Crime Lab's

photographic evidence.

MR. JOHNSON: No objection to that photograph.

It has already been admitted at trial.

THE COURT: Okay. So it's 16. Mark it, and it's

admitted.
(Exhibit 16 marked and admitted into evidence.)
THE COURT: Are the interpreters doing okay?
THE INTERPRETER: (Affirmative responses.)

THE COURT: Okay. All right.
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At this point, I need to know, are you able to go
past 5:007?

THE INTERPRETER: Yes, Your Honor. We notified
your assistant that if we do go past 5:00, we'll have to stay
here and change our flights, which is perfectly fine with us.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, your

courtesy to the Court is greatly appreciated. So thank you.

Ms. Clerk, if we do go past 5:00 and you need to make a
arrangements or someone needs to come in for you, all you need
to do is tell me.
THE COURT CLERK: I appreciate it. 1I'll be fine.
THE COURT: Ms. Reporter, same thing.
Please proceed.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Do you recognize this photograph from just
previously viewing the photograph?
A. I -- I have seen this photograph.
THE COURT: Which is Exhibit 167
MR. MALONE: Exhibit 16.
THE ‘COURT: Thank you.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. So, in other words, have you —-- have you
previously reviewed Exhibit 167

A. Yes, I have.
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Q. -Are you able to locate it using -- with the
assistance of the diagram, Exhibit 157?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And describe, if anything, the relevance
of that photograph.

A. Again, this photograph shows the end table next
to the sofa. This is the end table. And there's a lamp
that's present. A few items they look like paper items,
possibly a remote control or something. And then a drinking
glass with some orange liquid substance at the bottom of it.

THE COURT: I see it. Thank you.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. In your training and experience in -- we ask —--
- MR." MALONE: Did we admit --
THE COURT: We did admit. Thank you.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. . In your training and experience in crime scene
documentation, would the forensic -- the crime scene
documenters move anything before they photograph it?

A. They shouldn't.

Q. Shouldn't. Okay.

So, there was a second shot here, and we
discussed it partially. Correct?

A. That's correct.
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Q. Okay. So what can you tell us about the second
shot? Is»there a way that Harry Leibel could have inflicted
that shot on himself?

A. I believe there is, yes.

Q. Please let us know what that is.

A. If the first shot enabled Mr. Leibel -- and he's
still alive; he's lying on his left side now. He has a wound.
He has an injury to the left shoulder. Now anatomically, I
don't know if -- from the elbow down to the hand, if that left
portion of the arm is disabled. I have no idea; however, if
it isn't —-- it's possible and Mr. Noedel has also documented
this. 1It's possible that he went for a second shot, raised
the weapon up again, and held the muzzle the end -- toward the
end of the barrel with his left hand still operable and able
to reach up and try for a second shot.

The indication that there's damage and soot
patfern and also part of the wadding that's inside this
cartridge is on the back of his hand kind of leads me to
believe that Mr. Leibel had attempted a second shot. And
where it was even deflected because he couldn't properly raise
that arm because of the damage to the shoulder, the weapon
slipped out, it discharged because it only has -- it's -- you
have to cock that weapon. It discharges with a three-pound

pull, and that's where we get this deflection from the back of
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the hand to the shoulder and then into the sofa. The
reason -- that leads me to believe —— in my experience of
investigating a number of gunshot wounds, suicides and
homicides —-- that this is not a defensive action. Defensive
action would be somebody raising their hand and going like
this if somebody was pointing the gun at them.

THE COURT: So the distinction you've made is you
define a defensive action as palm outward?

THE WITNESS: That's correct.

THE COURT: And you're indicating that the paim
was inward —-

THE WITNESS: That is right.

THE COURT: -~ on this occasion?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. I just want the record to
reflect what the witness was showing. oE

BY MR. MALONE: o,

£
~ Y

Q. And why was the palm inward? Well —-- well, tﬁen
what leads you to believe? "
A. I —-1-—1 -
Q. Well, were you able -—- were you able —— I'm
sorry. I interrupted there.
Were you able to determine from the evidence that

you've reviewed where the entry wound was? On the hand?
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A. On the hand. Yes, it was on top of —-— on top of
the back of the left hand. There are photographs that clearly
showed this. And with the wadding, the white plastic wadding
sticking out.

Q. And the wadding is something inside the shotgun
shell?

A. That's correct.

Q. And did you discern —-- did you see any evidence

of gunshot residue on the hand?

A. Oh, yes.
Q. So that's additional evidence?
A. That is additional evidence.
Q. Okay. Of a back -- back-handed entry?
A, Yes. Yes.
Q. Did -- in your opinion, did Harry Leibel have to
be particularly coordinated to do these actions with this gun?
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Outside of his
expertise.
MR. MALONE: Well, if you had -- okay.
THE COURT: . Sustained. |
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Does —-- have you had experience in ipvestigating
many suicides?

A. A number of them, yes.
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Q. Okay. Have you evér come across anyone of the
Jewish faith who has committed suicide?

A. Oh, that, I don't know.

Q. I'm wondering about any experience that you've
had previously, say, in Los Angeles about people who are
Jewiéh committing suicide.

MR. JOHNSON: Objeétion. He already answered he
doesn't know.
THE COURT: Yeah. He indicated he doesn't know.
THE WITNESS: Right.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Okay. Now, when this gun is fired in a

single—acﬁion, the hammer -- is it correct that the hammer

needs to be cocked back?

A. That's correct.
0. Okay.
A. What —— I'm sorry. I need to -- I need to

clarify that. You don't have to put it in single-action. You

can leave it in double-action.

Q. Sure.

A. So there are two methods of this weapon being
discharged.

Q. Are you aware —-

THE COURT: Which you already explained it: It
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requires a greater trigger pull?
THE WITNESS: That's correct.
THE COURT: Thank you.

BY MR. MALONE:

0. Are you aware of the condition that -- Whether
that -- the hammer --

Are you aware of whether the weapon was found
with the hammer cocked back or not?

A. Yes. According to the reports and also a view in
one of the photographs, the hammer_is back.

Q. Okay. If someone is a trained -- trained
shooter, do they leave a weapon of this type with a hammer
cocked back?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Speculation. Outside
of his expertise and training.

MR. MALONE: He has training --

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. MALONE: Sustained?

THE COURT: You know, that's just -- that's just
supposition. It would be just as easy to arqgue if someone has
shot themselves twice, would they cock the weapon again, and
I'm not going to allow that, either. So that's supposition.

MR. MAIONE: I agree. I —-- I'm fine with it.

We'll withdraw that question.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

243 <10 |




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

C S,

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Mr. Billau, is there anything that I haven't
asked that is relevant to the case in your opinion from what
you've seen?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Vague.

THE COURT: Repeat it, please.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Is there anything of relevance that you could add
to your testimony here today?

THE COURT: That is very vague.

MR. MAIONE: Correct.

THE COURT: So -- so he wants to know is there
anything that the two of you discussed that you were going to
testify about that he's forgotten to ask you. That's more
specific.

THE WITNESS: Not in particular, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: According to the reports, though,
that I read, I had several questions of my own.

THE COURT: Well, that's not the question. So
thank you.

THE WITNESS: No, I agree.

THE COURT: I appreciate it.

/17
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BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Could you tell me one of -- the first question
that you had. |

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Relevance to his
questions of his own.

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not sure, you know, why
that's relevant and where that may take us. He may have
questions about, you know, what happens in the afterlife. So
you need to narrow that, sir.

And you may have a seat, sir.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR; MALONE: Your Honor, I think I'm going to --
I think I'm going to fold my tent --

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. MALONE: -- with Mr. Billau.

THE COURT: Sir.

TﬁE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: We are back to you sir, Mr. Johnson.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. Mr. Billau, what training have you —-- what

courses have you taken on trajectory?
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A. Bloodstain pattern interpretation. Education —-

Q. Let me be more specific. What training have you
had on the trajectory of bullets?

A. I'm trying to remember here. There was
on-the-job training through the Washoe County Sheriff's Office
Crime Laboratory firearms division.

Q. Who trained you on trajectory of bullets?

A. That would be Mr. Kevin Laddick.

Q. Was that an actual, formal course?

A. It —- well, for the Crime Lab, it was, yes. You .

-mean formal, as like college credits?

Q. Was it an actual class, or was it just
conversations with someone»else?

A, Oh, no. It was actual. I had to use
instruments, especially the comparative instruments that are
there -- excuse me —-- within the Crime Laboratory that we
utilized at the time.

Q. And how long was that class?

A. Oh, gosh. It was —-- it was over a week.

Q. Okay. And did that class involve projectiles
bouncing off of bones and going through human flesh?

A. No.

Q. Did that class involve projectiles going through

couches?
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A. Gosh, I'm trying to remember. We did shoot at
objects. I can't remember if we shot at a sofa or not. But
it did include shooting at -- such as vehicleAdoors.

Q. Sorry. That wasn’tlthe -- the question was
whether you had\a class on projectiles going through sofas.

A. No, not that I can remember. It may have been,
but T can't remember.

Q. And during that class, what were the tools that

you used to do that projectile analysis?

A. Various firearms.
Q. Any other tools besides firearms?
A. Oh, also analyzing the projectiles themselves.

With comparative microscopes to see if we could match up
the —— which weapon that came from, from test fire -- test
fire cartridges utilizing the same weapons.

Q. Did you do that here?

A. At Washoe County Crime Lab.

Q. Did you do that here in this case? Did you
utilize a microscope to look at the projectile in this case?

A.  No.

Q. What other tools did you use in your training in
that class?

A. There it was the entry, and -- that was quite an

extensive course -— the entry into the DRUGFIRE.
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system. That was an 80-hour course.

one word.

THE COURT: So that's not shooting a
pharmaceutical?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: So DRUG is some acronym for
something?

The company nicknamed it that.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q.
tool?

A.

had to use the microscopes. We had to use the computer

systems.
Q.
system in

A,

THE INTERPRETER: I'm sorry. Into what?

THE WITNESS: The DRUGFIRE national computer

THE COURT: Would you spell that, please.

THE WITNESS: D-R-U-G-F-I-R-E. And that's all

THE WITNESS: Yes. I don't know what it was.

So DRUG- -- is the DRUGFIRE 80-hour course a
Well, yes, because we had to use the tool. We
Okay. And did you utilize that DRUGFIRE computer

this case?

Oh, I did not, no.
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Q. Okay. What other tools did you learn how to use
to do your trajectory analysis in this training?

A. Different gunsmithing tools, one of which is a
trigger pound test instrument in determining what the -- the
weight of the trigger is, the pull of the trigger.

Q. And did you use that on the actual weapon in this
case?

A. Oh, no.

Q. How about some -- any other tools that you used
in your training to determine trajectory?

A. The —-- the trajectory kit.

Q. And what was in the trajectory kit?

A. There's a laser; that's in the trajectory kit.
That's like a tube laser. You know, it's only‘about a half
inch much in diameter and only about maybe two inches, two and
a half inches long.

Q. And did you utiliie that laser in this case?

A. Oh, no.

Q. Okay. Any other tools that are in that kit?

A. Yes. There's the -- the rods. The trajectory
rods themselves.

0. And what are those? Just like this (indicating)?

A. No. They are made out of different materials.

The —— there -- there's a metal one, which is the base that
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a -- you're supposed to use first.
0. And did you utilize that in this case?
A. Oh, no.
Q. The ones that attach to it, did you utilize that

in this case?

A. No.
Q. Did you utilize this rod on the actual couch?
A. I did not, no.

Q. Okay. Any other tools that you used in any of
your training? You said you had an 80-hour course and this
one by your —-- someone else that worked there. Any other
tools that you'?e utilized in the --

A. For fire- —-— for, specifically, firearms, that's
what you're asking?

Q. Uh-huh. Yeah.

A. Not that I can recall.

Q. Any other training on trajectory that you've
received over your career involving firearms and trajectory?

A. Just -- no.

Q. Okay. And then you testified during the trial
that, at some point, trajectory just becomes a subjective
interpretation; isn't that correct?

A. | That's correct.

Q. So you didn't ~- you didn't utilize any
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scientific tools to form your opinion here today. Correct?

A. No.

Q. So your testimony here today was just your
subjective interpretation of what you believed happened.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. So that wouldn't be something that you could
testify to a degree of scientific certainty. Correct?

A. Oh, that's correct.

Q. Okay. And do you recall reviewing the testimony
of Matthew Noedel?

A, Not --

Q. Or Mr. Noedel. I'm not sure of his first name.
Did you recall reviewing the testimony of Mr. Noedel?

A. I've reviewed it, but not in its entirety. I
mean, I reviewed it in its entirety, but I don't know if I can
remember all of it.

Q. Do you recall him offering opinion to a degree of
scientific certainty during the trial?

A. No, I can't recall.

Q. Okay. Other than the testimony of the witnesses
at the trial, is there any document or information that you
reviewed in prebaration for this testimony that you hadn't

previously reviewed in preparation for your testimony at
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trial —- at the original trial in this case?
A. The —— what I can remember is the -- the
testimony of the witness -- prior witnesses, I had not seen

that before.

Q. - And other than fhat, the testimony of the prior
witnesses, is there anything, any document or anything else
that you reviewed in preparation for your testimony today that
you hadn't previously reviewed in preparation for your
testimony at the actual trial for Ms. Leibel?

A, Not that I can recall in —— I do recall that, you
know, the testimonies, I hadn't seen before.

Q. And before that trial, did you ever tell
Ms. Brown that they should have used a wood dowel rod and not
a metal dowel rod?

| A. No.

Q. Okay. And before the trial, did you ever inform
her of any of the things that took place here that you
believed took place?

A. No.

Q. And before the trial, did you ever tell her that
you believed that the index or middle finger was used to pull
the trigger and not the -- the thumb?

A. No.

Q. Okay. And you never told her that you believed
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that the hole might be bigger than it was originally?

A. You know, I may have.
Q. Do you know for sure?
A. I may have made the comment, and I'm not sure.

0. Okay. Thanks.

And you have no idea whether this -- any
projectile bounced off a spring or anything else inside the
couch, do you? |

A. I have no idea.

Q. And you don't know for certain that the chair
was —— the recliner was broken; it just appeared that way to
you. Correct?

A. It did.

Q. And did you ever measure the end table in that
picture -- sorry. It was Exhibit 16 is the -- do you recall
the picture?

A. The photograph, I believe, was 16.

Q. Exhibit 16. Showing you Exhibit 16. Did you
ever measure that end table?

A. No. And it wasn't at the scene when I was there.

Q. So your opinion that this was blocking the shot
isn't based on any measurements. Correct?

A. No, that's correct.

Q. It's just based on your subjective
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interpretation. Correct?

A. Based on my decision, and that was based upon the
photograph and that drawing, the crime scene drawing.

Q. But you didn't utilize any tools to make that —-

A. Oh, I didn't, no.

Q. Okay. And you didn't base it on anyone else
who'd used tools on that end table. Correct?

A. The only thing I based it on was the measurements
that the Washoe County Crime Lab had taken.

Q. And they had taken measurements of that table?

A. That i1s correct.

Q. And you were asked a question by Ms. Brown during
the trial about whether you believe that there was sufficient
information to form an opinion about trajectory. Correct? At
trial?

THE COURT: Would you repeat that for me, please.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. You were asked a question --
THE COURT: I might have lost the second part of
that.
MR. JOHNSON: Sure.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. You were asked the question at the original trial

by Ms. Brown about whether you believed there was sufficient
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information to make a —— form an opinion about trajectory;
ién't that correct?
MR. MALONE: Your Honor, objection. We have an
actual transcript. The question is ﬁague and ambiguous.
THE COURT: Overruled. Overruled.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. Would you like me to repeat the question?
A. No. I understand, but I pan't recall —-
~ CK > THE COURT: Okay.
THE WITNESS: -- at this time.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. Would looking at the transcript refresh your
recollection?
A. It would.
MR. MALONE: Sir --
THE COURT: You might want to show it there.
MR. JOHNSON: I apologize.
MR. MALONE: Do you have a copy for me?
MR. JOHNSON: I do not.
MR. MALONE: Thank you. I found it.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
the question. The Court -- the Court should, I think, review

the actual question asked by Ms. Brown. There are numerous
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objections. It's very”difficult to understand, in
specificity, what the question is and attempt to answer it.

THE COURT: And -- well, here ié the thing. The
question was, looking at the transcript, would it refresh your
recollection. So it might refresh your recollection; it might
not.

MR. MALONE: Correct.

THE COURT: But he said he thought it might.

MR. MAIONE: I withdraw my objection.

THE COURT: So he gets to look at it. You don't
need to mark it because it doesn't go into evidence, but he
reads it to himself. And you can ask him when he's done
reading it if that refreshed his recollection.

BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. I'm showing you page 81, and it goes on to
page 82, the bottom corner transcript.

THE COURT: Let us know when you're done reading
it.

Oh, I'm sorry.

THE WITNESS: I'm reading —- I just want to
clarify. I am reading the lower right-hand corner.

BY MR. JOHNSON:
0. Sure. On to the next page.

A. Oh, okay.
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THE WITNESS: Okay. I'm finished, Your Honér.

THE COURT: You're finished?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: So could you ask —- reask the
question again.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, I can.

THE COURT: Well, the first question he's going
to ask you is whether that refreshed your recollection.

THE WITNESS: Oh, yes, it did.

THE COURT: Then you may go ahead.

MR. JOHNSON: 1I'll repeat the question.
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Were you asked a question by Ms. Brown at trial
about whether the information that you were provided at the
time was sufficient for you to draw a conclusion concerning
trajectory?

A. And I testified I cannot.

Q. Were you asked —- you were asked that question.
Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And you testified that you could not?

A. That's correct.

Q. But today you drew a conclusion about trajectory.
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Correct?
A. From the information.
MR. MAIONE: Vague. Vague and ambiguous
question. We're not talking —- we don't know what shot is

being spoken about.

THE COURT: 1It's an inflection that you've made,
so which shot are you speaking about or are you speaking --
why ddn't you talk about one at a time.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Today, you drew a conclusion about the trajectory
of the first shot. Correct?

A. In —— in my opinion, that is correct.

Q. But back on the trial date, you said you didn't
have enough information to draw a conclusion about trajectory.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And do you recall -- what was the information
that you believed at the time was necessary for you to make a
conclusion about trajectory? Do you recall your testimony?

MR. MALONE: Referring to which shot, Your Honor,
please?

MR. JOHNSON: I'm referring to —-

THE COURT: Are you still talking being Number 1°?

MR. JOHNSON: I'm —-- I'm referring to the -—-
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the -- either one.
THE COURT: Either one.
THE WITNESS: Either one.
"MR. MALONE: Your Honor, since the questidn by
Ms. Brown doesn't specify which shot she's questioning, I
think this line of -- what we have.is a question by Ms. Brown
concerning his opinion ébout one particular trajectory, which
is not specified.
THE COURT: Why don't you clear-that up just so.
MR. JOHNSON: It seems to be a question —- I
mean, I can do it, Your Honor, but that's a question for
recross, not a question -- not a —-—
| THE COURT: I'm not going to argue with you. Why
don't you clear it up.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. So, my question is, on the day of trial, when you
were asked a question about what information you needed to
draw a conclusion about trajectoiy, whether or not it was the

trajectory of 1 or 2 or both, what is the information that you

'said was lacking that you needed to draw a conclusion?

MR. MALONE: Same objection, Your Honor. He
can't speculate as to what'question ~-- what shot or
trajectory —-

THE COURT: Overruled. Overruled. He can say
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why he felt that he did not have enough information.

THE WITNESS: The only thing I can think about is
maybe I didn't review the reports given to me at the time
really.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Maybe you misunderstood my questioh. I'm not
asking for your hindsight opinion; I!'m asking whether you
recall what the reason you testified to in court -- what the
information you testified to in court was what you needed to
draw a trajectory-related conclusion.

A. I can't remember.

Q. Would it refresh with your recollection to read
your testimony from back then?

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, he's already done
testimony.

THE WITNESS: Additional testimony?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes. Correct.

MR. MAILONE: Well, I --

THE COURT: Wait. Wait. Stop. Stop. What is
the objection?

MR. MALONE: He —-- Mr. ——

THE COURT: Johnson.

MR. MAILONE: Mr. Johnson already asked if it

would refresh his recollection to read the testimony. The
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witness read the testimony.

question.

either.

refresh his recollection he can look at the transcript. If he

believes it would refresh his recollection.

THE COURT: Now he's asked him a different

MR. MAILONE: No, he's actually asked ——

THE COURT: Sir, I'm not going to argue with you,

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

THE COURT: So if he believes that it would

would not, then there's no point in it.

Sir, would it refresh your recollection.
THE WITNESS: It would.

THE COURT: Then show him the transcript.
MR. MALONE: And can I —--

THE COURT: But you certainly should advise

counsel as to exactly what you're showing him.

MR. JOHNSON: Sure.
MR. MALONE: You should have copies for me.

Oh. Thank you.

THE COURT: Now, you should tell me what part of

the record you're going to show this witness.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, Your Honor.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

!

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

If he believes it

261



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

By,

o i
S

() <lj
N . S

Q. Mr. Billau, I'M showing you the same transcripts,
but instead of page 84, can you please refer to page 85 and
see if the highlighted portion refreshes your recollection?
Which is the first two to three questions.
THE COURT: Have you finished reading it, sir?
THE WITNESS: I have, Your Hono:.
THE COURT: Does it refresh your recollection?
THE WITNESS: It does.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. And so isn't it true that you testified that
information you needed was from the initial investigators on
the scene to draw your trajectory-related conclusion.
Correct?

A. Yes, I did answer that.

Q. And then you testified that that documentation
was lacking in this case. Correct?

A. At the time, vyes.

Q. And you just -- you previously testified that,
when you prepared for this testimony, the only additional
thing that you had to draw your trajectory-related conclusions
today was the testimony of the witnesses at the trial.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

MR. MALONE: If we could have specification which
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trajectory we are talking about.
MR. JOHNSON: I'm talking about both, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
' MR. MALONE: Well —-
THE COURT: You can cross him on that.
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. And today?

THE COURT: Or redirect. I'm sorry, sir.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. And today you still don't have that information
from the original investigators to draw a conclusion.
Correct?

A. No additional -- is that what you're asking? 1Is
it --

Q. Information that you previously testified —-

THE COURT: Wait. Wait. Wait. You cannot talk
at the same time because the court reporter can't get that.

MR. JOHNSON: I apologize, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So the witness is trying to clar- --
clarify what it is you're requesting him. So why don't you
ask your question and let's see if he understands it.

MR. JOHNSON: Sure.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Previously you testified that the information
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that was lacking that you needed to draw a trajectory-related
conclusion was information from the initial investigators on
the scene.

A. That's correct.

Q. Since then, you have not reviewed that
information to perform your opinion in this case; isn't that
correct?

A. I used the same information asAﬁhe previous trial
and reviewed that information again. That's what I'm basing
is my review now.

Q. Sure. Was the missing information found between
the day of trial and today?

A. I don't understand the question. If it was
found?

MR. MAIONE: Your Honor,'there's the answer.
BY MR. JOHNSON: |

Q. - You previously testified that there was
information -—-

THE COURT: That's not an objection; that's a
comment.

MR. MALONE: Objection, Your Honor. Objection.
He's testified that he doesn't understand the question.

MR. JOHNSON: And I'm clarifying with another

question, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Go ahead and clarify it. I'm not
getting a lot of information yet.

MR. JOHNSON: Sure.

THE COURT: So...
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. You previously testified that there was
information that the initiai investigators did not collect
that you needed to make your trajectory-related conclusion.
Correct?

A. That is --

MR. MALONE: Objection, Your Honor. He's
testified: Once at the trial and once today.

THE COURT: So what's the legal objection?

MR. MALONE: Which testimony are we talking
about?

MR. JOHNSON: I use the word "previously,"
Your Honor.

MR. MALOﬁE: Well, he —-

THE COURT: Wait. Stop. I'm not going to have

that petty argument. He is referring to testimony at the time

of trial. That's what the question refers to. Is that right?

MR. JOHNSON: Correct.
THE COURT: That's how I understand it.

Do you understand it that way, sir?
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THE WITNESS: I do, sir.
THE COURT: Okay. Let us move forward.
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. That information that you testified to at the
trial that you said was missing from the initial
investigators, have you reviewed that information to draw your
conclusion today?

A. I have.

0. And what information is that?

A. It would be their trajectory analysis. Is that
what we are talking'about?

Q. I don't know. You just —-- you just said that you
reviewed information that you hadn't previously reviewed from
the initial investigators. I want to know what information
that was. What was it?

A. It would be their -- their analysis of the
trajectory. ' '

Q. Whose analysis?

A. That would be both Mr. Noedel's, who came up with
it. And he's reviewing —- or he's -- I'm trying to make this
clear. He's using data that was provided by him from the
measurements that the Washoe County Sheriff's Office had made.
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. You're telling me today that Mr. Noedel was the
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initial investigator on the scene?

A. No, he wasn't. He's reviewing their report.

Q. But you testified that you needed additional
information from the initial investigator on the scene to draw
your conclusion about trajectories at the day -- on the day of
trial. Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you didn't review that information to form
your opinion today. Correct? The missing information that
you didn't have on trial.

A. No. The information, I believe, was still in the
same report. So it could have been my error.

Q. So you're saying your errbr‘was that you just
didn't review the initial -- initial invest- -- information
from the investigators, not that it wasn't available on the
day of trial?

A, It was —- it was available on the day of trial.

I had copies of the report. I just didn't remember what was
in that -- totally what was in that report. I didn't have any
notes with me at that time, and I hadn't -- I hadn't performed
a report. It wasn't requested.

THE COURT: Okay. What's your next question?
BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Anytime after your testimony on the trial date,
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part of the investigative report?

A. Not that I recall.

Q. So she would have no idea that you mistakenly
didn't review part of the information?

A.  That would be -- yeah, that would be correct.

MR. JOHNSON: No further questions for this

witness, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Redirect, sir.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. So, you read from page 84°?

A. -4,

Q. Lines 12 through 20~ -- well, lines 12 through
207?

A. You mean the —-

THE COURT: Of the trial transcript to refresh
his recollection. »

MR. MALONE: Of the trial transcript. Yes. To
refresh your recollection. And if I may read that into the
record, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Why?

MR. MALONE: Because I think -- did you -- okay.
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BY MR. MAILONE:

Q.
by Ms. Brown

A,

Q.

about?

BY MR. MALONE
Q.
A.

Q.

trajectory she's talking about?

A.

Q.

questions confusing?

Did you truly understand what this question asked
was?

I may not have.

Well, I mean, do you now?

Oh, I do now, yes.

Well, do you know which trajectory she's talking

No.

Okay. So --

THE COURT: At the time of trial --
MR. MALONE: That's --

THE COURT: -- in the transcript?
THE WITNESS: That's correct.

Do you know now?

I do now, yes.

Now, how do you know from reading this which

Oh, I don't know.

Okay. Okay. Did you find the prosecutor's

THE COURT: At the time of trial or today?
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MR. MALONE: Thank you. I'm hoisted on my own
petard.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, try to get off it.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Today, did you find this -- did you find this
line of questioning confusing?

| THE COURT: Today?
MR. MAIONE: Today. Did you —-- yes.

A. In a way, I did, yes.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Okay. wa, it's been your testimony here today
that you cannot determine a trajectory for the second shot.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And that is because there was a
possibility of deflection by numerous objects. Correct?

A. Just not deflection by objects.

0. Well, if you can answer the first question.

A. Oh, I'm sorry. Yes.

Q. Could have been deflected by the hand?

A. Yes.

Q. Could have been deflected by the shoulder?

A. Yes.

Q. Could have been deflected by the —-- any part of
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the éouch?

A. Oh, yes.

0. And it —— yes?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So when you're asked if you had enough
information to make a determination about deflection for that
second shof, you still don't. Right?

A. I have no idea.

0. Well, no. You still -- do you have enough
information, still? Do you still -- right now, today?

MR. JOHNSON: Can't —-

MR. MALONE: What?

THE COURT: Nothing. It's nothing. Go ahead.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Right now, do you have enough information --

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE COURT: Overruled.

Finish your question so that he can answer. I
overruled the objection.

MR. MALONE: Thank you. Okay.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. It's your testimony that you cannot determine a
trajectory for the second shot based on any available

information. Correct?
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A. That is correct.
Q. And that's information you had at the first
trial. Correct? |
A. That's correct.
Q. Arid information you had at the second trial?
THE COURT: First trial and second trial?
MR. MAIONE: ' Sec- -- I mean, sorry. And at this
hearing today. I —-- Your Honor, I apologize.. I'm...
THE COURT: Wearing down.
MR; MAIONE: Wearing down.
THE WITNESS: That's correct.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Okay. And so you do have an opinion about the
second shot?
A. I do.
Q. That opinion is that any opinion really is not
terribly reliable for the second shot?
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. MAILONE:
Q. Okay. Well, I'm going to —- I'm going to clarify
this. The first shot, the .45-shot. Correct?
A. Correct.

Q. Okay. You've given a possible explanation for
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that, how that shot could have occurred. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And were you asked that at the first
trial, do you recall?

A. Not that I recall.

Q. Okay. And did you talk about the second shot at
trial?

A. Not that I recall.

Q. Well, the trajectory of the second shot?

A. You know, again, I'm wearing down. I can't —— I
can't recall.

Q. Okay. Well, your testimony here today is that
there is not enough inf- —-- it is still that there is not
enough information to determine a trajectory for the second
shot?l

A. Yes, I agree with that.

Q. Okay. So we are clear on that?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And would you agree that Ms. Broﬁn did not
designate which trajectory she was referring to?

A. I agree with that, yes.

Q. Okay. And the question becomes very difficult to
answer at that point. Correct?

A. It does.
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Q. Okay. Now, you did review some additional

information in preparation for this hearing. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And you testified earlier that that would
be the testimony from other witnesses at trial?

A. That's correct.

Q- Okay. Mr. Johnson asked you a ‘'series of
questions about whether or not you did the measurements you've
based your opinions on.

A, Yes, he did.

Q. Do you remember thosé?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Is it common in your profession in crime

scene analysis to rely on the measurements made by other

people in the field?

A. For my own testimony?
Q. If you're going to —-- let me rephrase.
Crime scene investigation is somewhat —-- is

usually a team exercise. Correct?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Okay. Are you familiar with the people that did
the measurements at the Leibel residence?

A. Am I familiar with them?

Q. Do you remember their names?
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A. I remember Marci Margritier, she was working at
the lab when I was there. The other gentleman wasn't.

Q. Okay. Joey Lear?

A. Lear.

Q. Okay. So Lear and Margritier did the initial

investigation?

A. That's correct.

Q. And the initial investigation consisted of
measurements?

A. That's correct.

Q. And diagramming?

A. Yes.

Q. Is it normal to rely upon the reports generated

by people doing those jobs that Lear and Margritier did here?
Is it normal for a person doing the analysis to rely on those
measurements made by other people?

A. Knowing that those individuals are trained for
that, that's correct.

0. Okay. And are these individuals trained?

A. From my review. I know that Ms. Margritier was.

And I have to go by Mr. Lear's CV.

Q. Okay. To your knowledge, was Mr. Noedel -- did
Mr. Noedel make any of those initial measurements?

A. Not that I'm aware of.
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Q. So my question really is it's standard procedure
to rely on the work bf others in forming opinions in crime
scene investigation?

A. Normally, it is.

0. Okay.

A. Working within the team effort.

Q. Okay. And everyone has to be vetted and trained?

. A.  Yeah, absolutely. |
Q. Okay. Regarding your -- regarding the training
to be a detective —— do you know any detectives -- ho, do you’
know any forensic analysis —- never mind. Dumb it down.
Sorry. Withdraw the question:
You testified earlier that you worked with Kevin
Laddick --

A. I did.

Q. -— in learning aspects of firearm operation,
trajectory, tool mark analysis. Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Okay. And Kevin Laddick taught the course that
you talked about before?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. One of the things that I think that
Mr. Johnson was talking about, about what scientific evidence’

did you -- or tools did you use to formulate your opinions
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here today. And you —-- you basicaily —-- you know, you
answered really none. Correct?
Well, let me rephrase that question. You had no

access to this scene. Correct? In unmolested fashion.

A. No.
Q. Okay. Is the scene terribly informative once all
the furniture and surround- -- and evidence has been destroyed

or removed?

A. No. You will be lacking some information.
Q. How much information?
A. Quite a few. Quite a bit.

Q. Okay. Pretty —— would it be fair to say most of
it?

A. I would say yes, most of it.

Q. Okay. So you looked at an empty house?

A, Yes.

Q. And you saw a hole in the wall?

A. That's correct.

Q. And you were able to watch —-- you were able to
match that hole in the wall up with photographslthat were
taken on the scene that showed penetration by projectiles.
Right?

A, Yes. Excuse me.

Q. And I think your previous testimony was there
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were too many things to move in that couch area. Correct?
A. There —-- there were an awful lot of things that
could be movable in that area.

Q. Okay. Body?

A. Yes.
Q. Couch?
A. That's correct.
Q. Position?
And fhere was insufficient -- was there

sufficient documentation as to the potential for deflection in
the couch or anything else?

A. No.

Q. Okay. So when you refer to needing more
information, does that refer to some of those things we just
talked about?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Okay. Now, do you have -- is it a case where you
can postulate an opinion regarding trajectory through --
regarding the trajectory of the first shot? |

A. Based upon the reports.

0. Okay. Which reports, sir?

A. It would be the autopsy report.

Q. Okay.

A. Based upon that, yes.
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Q. Okay. And you have photographs?

A. Not only do you have the autopsy photographs, you
also have the X-rays -- the photographs of the X-rays, which
are important.

Q. And you have —-- can see two photographs show the

entry wound ——

A. Yes.
0. —— on the body?
A. Yes.

Q. On the —-- and we are talking first shot here
still?

A. That is correct.

Q. And there's no exit, so we don't have an exit
wound photograph?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. But we do have the X-ray photographs?

A. We do, yes.

Q. And we have the anatomical knowledge of
Dr. Omalu? |
| A. Yes.
Q. In other words, he expressed --—
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. Did he express an opinion about the

gunshot path in this case?
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A. He did, vyes.

Q. Okay. And his -- his analysis was basically to
refer to anatomiéal -— to certain bones, joints, et cetera.
Correct?'

A, That's correct.

Q. And that's outside your wheelhouse?

A, It is.

Q. Outside your training?

A. Yes. |

Q. But you know how bullets act? You know how

bullets act.

A.

Q.

Correct?
I do.

Did you understand that —- that wasn't the best

question, but --

THE COURT: Mr. Malone, I don't mean to interrupt

you, but it's now 4:35.

MR. MALONE: Okay.

THE COURT: Once a horse passes to the great

pasture in the sky, it's best to quit farming.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

THE COURT: Are you done with this witness?
MR. MALONE: I am.

THE COURT: Do you have recross?

MR. JOHNSON: Just a final question -- two final
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questions, Your Honor.

THE WITNESS: May I ask a question, sir?

THE COURT: What would you like to ask?

THE WITNESS: It —- would it be improper if I
used one of these now?

MR. JOHNSON: I certainly don't object.

THE COURT: Used one of what's now, sir?

THE WITNESS: The lozenge.

THE COURT: No, you —— please, go ahead. Yes,
absolutely.

MR. MALONE: Please, please. Just don't break

your crown.

THE COURT: Yeah. Just don't break your tooth.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q; You testified in trial back in 2015 that there
wasn't anything to report concerning trajectory and your

review of it. Correct?

A. Excuse me. At the time, yes.

Q. And that you couldn't reach any conclusions.
Correct?

A. That's correct.

MR. JOHNSON: No further questions.
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THE COURT':
FURTHER

BY MR. MALONE:

Thank you.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q. And you still can't reach a conclusion regarding

the first shot -- the second shot.

THE COURT:
clear.
MR. MALONE:
THE COURT:
THE WITNESS:
THE COURT:
THE WITNESS:
THE COURT:
there. You may have it.
THE WITNESS:
THE COURT:
MR. MALONE:

Kharikova.

'THE COURT:

THE COURT REPORTER:

THE COURT:
this one?

MR. MALONE:

Correct?

That has been made so perfectly
Thank you. Thank YOu.

Sir, thank you for being here today.
Thank you, Your Honor.

You are excused.
Thank you.

There's an extra candy on the counter

Thank you.
Do you have another witness?

I do, Your Honor. Natasha
You doing okay down there?
Yes.

Thank you.

How many witnesses do you have after

Let me -- give me a moment to think.

If I can have a moment to think.
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THE COURT: Sure. While you think, we'll swear

this witness.

Ma

TH

'am, would you come forward? Thank you.
(The witness was sworn.)

E COURT: Please come up to the witness stand.

There's some water there if you would like.

TH

E WITNESS: Thank you.

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, just for the record, I

know you're aware of a motion I filed and my objections.

time, sir.

i

THE COURT: I am. And you're also aware that I

MR.

indicated I would rule when you object at the appropriate

JOHNSON: Okay.

THE COURT: And the testimony —-

MR.

so -- okay.

TH

JOHNSON: I wasn't sure if I needed to --

E COURT: You get to object once they get to

those questions, sir. Thank you very much. I appreciate it,

Mr. Johnson.

Mr.

Malone, sir.

NATALIYA KHARIKOVA,

having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Ma'am, would you state your name.
A. Nataliya Kharikova. I go by Natasha.
Q. Will you go ahead aﬂd spell both your names for
the court reporter.
A. It's N-A-T-A-L-I-Y-A, K-H-A-R-I-K-O-V-A. And

Natasha is N-A-T-A-S-H-A.

Q. And, ma'am, what is your profession?
A. I am a professional Russian interpreter.
Q. And are you certified -~ how many —-— where are

you certified-to interpret?

A. I am certified by the Judicial Council of the
State of California to interpret in courts of California. But
there's also a reciprocity between a number of states in the
United States; so I can also interpret in other states. And
I'm also qualified to interpret in Federal Court.

Q. And do you have training to -- in order to
perform that job?

A. Yes.

Q. And would you please describe, very quickly, that

training?
A. Do you mean training specifically for court
interpretation —-
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Q. For interpretation.
A, -— or just interpreting in general?
Q. Inter- —- well, let's —- I think interpreting in

general. Thank you; Do you have specific classroom training
for being an interpreter?

A. I do. My bachelor's degree is from a Russian
University where I specifically had interpreting courses and
translation courses. Then I also took some courses to take a
State Court interpreting exam in California; I then did take
this exam. And I also have a master's degree in conference
interpretation with distinction from the Middlebury Institute

of International Studies in Monterey.

Q. And conference interpreting is a subset of
interpreting?
A. Yes.

Q. And when we talk about interpreting, all of that
refers to your ability to translate from Russian to English

and English to Russian?

A. Correct.
Q. Do you have any other degrees?
A. I am also a translator certified by the American

Translators Association to translate specifically from English
into Russian.

Q. I'm specifically asking about other undergraduate

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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degrees and other aspects of language study.
A. I also have a —— well, it's a B.A. and an M.A.
from Russia in philology.

Q. And what is philology?

A. It's a study of literature, linguistics, and
history.
Q. And how much experience do you have in reporting
in all those -- excuse me.
How much experience —- what is your experience --

what is the level of your experience in translation in general
in all of those wvenues?

A. I've been a professionai interpreter and
translator for 20 years.

Q. Did you have an opportunity to review a
transcript -- let me ask you what materials you reviewed or
investigation you did in preparation for testifying today at
this hearing.

A. I had an opportunity to review Ms. Leibel's
interview or the transcript of her interview with law
enforcement on February 23rd. And then I also watched the
video of that same interview several times. I also watched
video of her interview that happened on the next day,

February 24th, when a Russian speaker was present to help her.

I also read the transcript of her 911 call. And -- well, I
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visited Ms. Leibel together with you to assess her ability to
not just speak English but also to communicate with another
English speaker.

Q. Okay. Did you observe discussions about legal
concepts between Ms. Leibel and myself?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Did you observe a discussion regarding her
right to testify at her trial?

.A. Yes.

" Q. Or today's hearing?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And how long did you spend in that
observation?

A. You mean the personal meeting?

Q. The meet -- yeah, the personal meeting with the
three of us.

A. About two hours.

Q. Okay. And that took place at Florence McClure —-

A. Yes.
Q. -- in Las Vegas?

A. (The witness nods.)
Q. Okay. You flew to Las Vegas, and that was both
of us?

A, I did.
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THE COURT: That's the women's prison, so that
the record is clear.

MR. MALONE: Yeah.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. And regarding the necessity for Ms. Leibel to
have an interpreter when speaking to an English-speaking
attorney, do you have an opinion?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do.

MR. JOHNSON: Repeat all the same objections that
I had in my»motion. I - do you want me to orally object
to ——

THE COURT: No, I don't want you to. I
understand your objection, and the objection is sustained.

MR. MALONE: Sustained?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. MALONE: May I continue to ask questions?

THE COURT: You can ask another gquestion. We'll
see if there's an objection to the next question.

MR. MALONE: Okay.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Did you observe any miscommunication between
Ms.- Leibel and myself when I was speaking to her in English?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Same reasons in

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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addition to relevance. This is something that happened two
years after or three years after.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Are you familiar with -- in part -- is it part of
your training to determine whether interpretation services are
necessary when —-- in a courtroom setting?

A. I wouldn't say it's part of my training, but it's
part of my everyday work.

Q. Okay. Are there times when you find that an
interpreter is not necessary for a native ﬁussian speaker?

A. Yes.

Q. Are there times when you find that an interpreter
is necessary for a native Russian speaker?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And how do you form those opinions?

A. Observing their ability to communicate and be
understood and also by how well they can express themselves in
English.

MR. MALONE: And, Your Honor, if I could have
some guidance from the Court as to what foundational
information the Court would like to assess Ms. Kharikova's
ability to testify.

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Malone, I appreciate your
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question, but I don't intend to try the case for you. And --
and so the...

MR. MAIONE: Okay.

THE COURT: I think you're going to have a hard
time with the foundation for this witness, but maybe you'll be
able to make it. And it's no offense to this witness;
however, you're asking her to testify about Ms. Leibel's
ability to understand and having her testify as to what she
has witnessed Ms. Leibel engage in conversation with you a
couple of years past the trial seems, to me, to be a séretch.

You asked her about the -- observing the
interviews and the tape or the disk that has been admitted,
and I don't know that she can provide any expert opinion on
what someone else's understanding is. And I don't know that
there's a foundation for her to be able to give -- to testify
as to what someone else's understanding of the English
language is. I can watch that just as well as she can, and I
can make that determinétion from observing it and see the same
foibles as she can observe. And so it does not seem, to me,
to be of assistance to the finder of fact to have this witness
testify to those things. And I don't know that it requires
any particular expertise to observe a conversation and to
determine whether someone is understanding that conversation

which ultimately is a question of fact that I have to
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conclude.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

THE.COURT: Thank you, sir.
BY MR. MALONE: |

Q. So, Ms. Kharikova, you were able to read the
transcript of her interview with sheriff's officers. Correct?

Ai Yes.

Q. Okay. You were able to view the video of her
interview with those same officers?

A. Yes.

Q. And then on the next day with different officers.
Correct?

A, Correct.

Q. Is there a method that you're aware of or is
there experience that you have in determining whether or not
there's ﬁnderstanding between a speaker and a listener? Well,
wait. One -- let me withdraw that question.

Did you observe in any -- on the videotape for
the first day without a Russian speaker -— and by the way,
that Russian speaker, was that an interpreter?

A. I don't think so.

Q. A professional interpreter?

A. I don't think so.

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Lack of personal

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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knowledge.
THE COURT: Well, she can say whether she knows.
We don't know whether she knows.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Do —- and in your opinion, given your training
and what you've experienced --
THE COURT: Ask her -- ask her if she knows.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Do you know whether or not --
THE COURT: Because she doesn't get an opinion on
that.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. —-— was?

A. I have no personal knowledge of that.

Q. Okay. Did you see problems with interpretation?
A. Yes.

Q. And were they significant?
MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Vague.
THE COURT: Well, that's -- that's sustained
because what is significant to one may not be to another.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Okay. Did you find important mistakes?
A. I found that this Russian speaker's Russian was

very lacking.
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Q. Okay. And is there a difference between a
Russian speaker and a Russian interpreter?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's training and experience; is that
correct?

A. And also the level of command of the lahguage.

Q. Okay. In viewing the videotape, were you able to
see clear -- oh, I'll ask this.

You have spoken to Ms. Leibel in both English and

Russian. Correct?

A, Correct.
Q. Okay. At Florence —-- at the women's prison?
A. Yes.

Q. And then you observed her speaking in English,
for the most part, on video?
A. Yes.
Q. Has her English improved based upon your training
and experience? |
MR. JOHNSON: Objection: Same objection.
MR. MALONE: Of?
THE COURT: Well, it --—
MR. JOHNSON: I believe your command of the
English is --

THE COURT: Thank you.
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MR. JOHNSON: -- just as good.

THE COURT: Thank you.

I'm going to allow her to answer that question,
but I'm not too sure that that's going to be really relevant.

MR. MALONE: Well, Your Honor, the -- and if I
can give background to the question.

THE COURT: No. It's --.1I told you she can
answer?

MR. MAIONE: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: So give your background through your
witness.

THE WITNESS: And, I'm sorry, the question was?
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Have you —-- you were able to see Ms. Leibel
speak -- now remember, I'm -- several years —-

THE COURT: Has her English improved, ma'am?

THE WITNESS: I would say that not by much.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

You; Honor, the only -- my response to the
objection is that I think that any defects in -- in foundation
should go to the weight of the evidence, not its
admissibility.

THE COURT: Thank you. And?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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MR. MAIONE: 'Your Honor, I wéuld be prepared to
give an dffer of'proof'of what Ms. Kharikova'sltestimony would
be here at today's heéring;

}THE COURT: Well, you're certainly entitled to
give an offer of proof.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, the offer of proof would
be that Ms. Kharikova has had extensive graduate and
postgraduate training, both in linguistics and in
interpretation; that she has formed an opinion that Ms. Leibel
presents as a person that does need an interpreter to fully
understand conversations in the English language.

And I agree -- I would agree, as well, that that
can be an opinion that could be addressed by lay witnesses. I
agree with that formulation. But I think it would be
helpful -- I present that it would be helpful to the trier of
fact to have a trained professional give their opinion about
the same thing. She would be able to testify regarding the
misinterpretation of certain words. She would be —-- she would
testify to the Court thét certain phraseology used by
Ms. Leibel is of -- is based upon the Russian language. In -
other words, she would testify something —-- that Ms. Leibel
thinks in Russian, and, when she attempts to speak in English,
it isn't the same. The concepts cannot be expressed clearly

because of language and cultural differences.
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THE COURT: Well, sir, that may all be true. But
you need to be far more specific than that and be able to
point out to me, I believe, where during the course of this
trial those failures interfered, one, with the attorney-client
relationship; and, two, with Ms. Leibel's ability to
understand the process specifically and not in general terms
that an idiom is used or whatever. Because --

MR. MAILONE: Okay.

THE COURT: -- there's already a great deal of
evidence that Ms. Leibel did understand.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor --—

THE COURT: And I don't know that this witness
can testify to any particular attorney-client conversation or
thing that happened during the trial that Ms. Leibel didn't
understand.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, the rules promulgated by
the Nevada Supreme Court in ADKT 0411 require the attorney to
make an initial assessment regarding any various
communication, and they include language specifically in that.
They also require that -- that the attorney continually
reevaluate that. 8o, we have a situation here in which I've
never seen where an interpreter is necessary in court but not
used by\the —— by counsel.

THE COURT: The interpreters are provided in
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court. I haven't made a finding that they are necessary, but
they've been provided.

MR. MALONE: Well, Your Hoénor, I think what
Ms. Kharikova would testify to is that a lot of time —-- what
she observed in the video would be long questions asked by law
enforcement and very short and almost nonresponsive answers
given by Ms. Leibel indicating a lack of knowledge or ability
to communicate. What we have is we have, I think, a veryl
difficult --

THE COURT: I don't know that she gets to testify
that it indicates a lack of knowledge or inability to
communicate.

-MR. MALONE: Lack of understanding would be a
more appropriate word. Lack of understanding is --

THE COURT: And certainly she has to testify to
that.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, but that is part of her
general job description is to make those assessments as well.
And, Your Honor, in order to make any kind of knowledgeable
assessment regarding a person's ability to communicate in a
second language, the assessor really does need to be somebody
who speaks both languages.

THE COURT: What's the authority for that?

MR. MALONE: Well, it's com— —- it's common
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sense, Your Honor. Because if you -- if —-- if somebody says a
word that you don't know, you have no idea what that is being
put together. Well, I can ask Ms. Kharikova the authority in
determining what the importance of interpretation'is and
whether or not one language speaker -- a single unilateral --
I don't know what we call it, a, you know, a person that
speaks one language, what their ability --

THE WITNESS: Monolingual.

THE COURT: You can go on with your offer of
proof, sir?

MR. MALONE: A monolingual.

THE COURT: Are you done with your offer of
proof?

MR. MALONE: I mean -- if I can ask her that
question?

THE COURT: You can ask her that as part of your
next question --

MR. MALONE: If --

THE COURT: -- assuming your offer of proof is
done.

MR. MALONE: Well, Your Honor, my offer of proof
that she would be -- she would be able to give you —-- provide
you testimony on how you do go about assessing someone's

competence in a language and their understanding in a foreign
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language.
THE COURT: You can ask her that.
BY MR. MALONE:

0. How do you go about assessing someone's
competency in a language that is not their own and their
ability to understand and express themselves in that language?

A. And are you talking about how I would do it when
I have to do it for work, or —--

Q. Yes. Well, with all that you have training in
many disciplines, you can give whatever infor- -- specialized
knowledge you have in answering that question.

A. In my professional experience, normally, you're
just able to make this foundation by observing somebody use
their second language, which would be English in this case.
And you make the decision by evaluating both their
comprehension and production. Basically, how well they are
able to understand including some complicated concepts, toward
legal and so on. And then production is how much they are
able to express in foreign language.

Q. Okay. Is it possible to tell -- to form some
opinion about understanding and comprehension based upon the
answers to questions?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay.
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MR. MAIONE: Your Honor, as part of my offer of
proof as well, attorneys aren't supposed to testify in their
own cases. But I've had an interpreter'for every meeting that
I've had for Ms. Leibel other than the first one.

THE COURT: I know that you have because I

have —-

MR. MALONE: Paid for it.

THE COURT: -- paid for it. But tell me why that
requires some expert testimony as opposed to -- you know,

you're asking this witness what she's observed during of the
course of those interviews. Why doeé that require any expert
testimony as opposed to my observation of it?

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, because you can't speak
to her. The Court —-- you don't have the ability, given the
rules of our system, to spend time with Ms. Leibel and ask her
about her case.

THE COURT: Right. But this witness has said
reviewing the disk, the interview. I can do those things.

MR. MALONE: I -- you certainly can, and I think
you will learn information from the disk and the interviews
and the transcript. She's also said —-- she's also testified
that she learned details from the transcript. I can make an
offer of proof from the interpreters here —--

THE COURT: So why do you need the witness?
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MR. MALONE: I'm trying to do it —-- honestly,
Your Honor -- well, I hate it when people say "honestly." I'm
trying to do a good job. I'm really trying to do a good job.

MR. MAUSERT: Your Honor, can I have just a
moment with my cb—counsel?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I think that Mr. Mausert
has made a very good point that there is no actual record of
communication between Ms. Brown and Ms. Leibel. We don't have
that. It's a vacuum. It went into the void, and it's gone.
So all we can do i1s really work backwards. I can make an
offer of proof that every court interpreter that I've utilized
in this case have said, "Oh, yeah, she needs an interpreter."
They --

MR. JOHNSON: I object to that offer of proof.

THE COURT: That -~

MR. MALONE: That's an offer of proof.

THE COURT: That objgction is sustained.

MR. MALONE: Okay. So that's what we had. I
know that the Court —-- I -- I know what the Court is thinking.
The Court is thinking that I'm flogging -- the Court knows I'm
nothing a dead horse. I know I'm flogging a dead horse.

THE COURT: No, sir. I realize that this is

important to your case. The language issue is important to
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your case. And, quite frankly, it's very important to me, and
I'm sure it's important to Mr. Johnson. It's important to the
concept of justice here, which is supposed to be my job.

But I will tell you, it has to be evidence that
is something more than just common sense. And if it is just a
matter of any lay.person —-- either this witness or someone who
is down at the Raley's grocery store or myself -- looking at
the_evidence and making a determination, you don't need an
expert to make that determination as to whether there is some
confusion in the conversation. Then we don't need an expert.

And you're right: There is not a record of the
conversations between Ms. Brown and Ms. Leibel. There is
testimony within the record about those conversations that
this witness cannot testify to because she wasn't there. So,
again, the objection from counsel goes to whether this
witness, as an expert, can supply something that would assist
a finder of fact -—- me -- as to Ms. Leibel's lack of
understanding.

And frankly, she doesn't have to, but Ms. Leibel
has not testified -- maybe she will -- that she didn't
understand. And -- and so I'm not certain that this witness
can testify that she did not understand those conversations
with counsel because she wasn't there. And she -- you know,

that's where we are.
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MR. MALONE: I -- Your Honor, I would say that -

THE COURT: And you are right, though, about
Ms. Brown's obligation to assess her client's need for
language assistance and to continue to make an ongoing
assessment.

MR. MAUSERT: Your Honor, could I —— could I
supplement counsel's argument?

THE COURT: No. One of you can argue at a time.
If you need to tell your counsel something --

MR. MAUSERT: Can I just have a —-— have a moment
here?

THE COURT: -- tell it to him.

Go ahead. I'm not going to have you both arguing
the same issue.

Sir?

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, we have interpreters for
the purpose of giving us complete information that relates to
the communication between individuals -- between individuals.
A person who is monolingual doesn't have the tools to assess
the other side of the conversation. And other people don't
have the other part'of the tool. It would be like a set of
pliers ——.I don't know if the Court is familiar with, like, a
set of —-

THE COURT: I know how a pair of pliers works,

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322
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sir.

MR. MALONE: Some people don't. But you can take
a pair of slip-joint pliers, the kind -- the cheap kind,
usually, that people have. And you take the one side off, and
it's no longer a set of pliers, and it's no longer useful.

So, when we have a situation where people are
from different cultures and speak different languages, if we
only have that one language involved, that -- only that one
language, we don't have a complete understanding of things.

Or it is suspect. It is suspect. This is the complete set of
pliers. This is what I'm trying to give to you. I'm trying
to give you the tool that you need to understand the situation
that my client is in. There -- you've stated that there's
plenty of information that you have regarding her
comprehension of English. If you haven't looked at the

video --

THE COURT: I said that there's a lot of it.

MR. MALONE: A lot of it.

Well —-

THE COURT: Within the record that Ms. Brown
testified to. How much "a lot" is, I'm not going to try to
quantify it.

MR. MAIONE: I think -- and I'm sorry. I think

this is a situation in which the system requires erring on the
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side of the criminal defendant. It's their Sixth Amendment
right to counsel that is implicated here. Theirs. They
possess it. The -- our government —-- our form of government,
our very system of justice takes that and makes it sacred. It
makes it sacred so I can't disclose things that she tells me
that aren't in the furtherance of her case. That applies to
the interpreter as well. So this is going to a very
foundational level. And as I said; it reduires both sides of
the tool. You can't just -- one half of a set of pliers is
not a set of pliers. One being able to assess this requires a
facility with both languages, which these ladies have, which
Ms. Kharikova has, which I assume you do not have. I do not
have. I need their help. I need their help.

And that's our position. I think I've —-- I think
I've done my best in trying to get the testimony in. But I do
believe she has aiready testified that she has training in
determining somebody's level of comprehension in a language
that is not their birth -- language of birth. So...

THE COURT: Well, I don't know that the record
indicates that she has some specialized training in that. If
you want to go on and make an offer of proof by questioning
her, you can do that and make your record.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Do you have tools that you use in determining
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whether or not somebody has -- can comprehend their second
language?

THE COURT: Ms. Brown is ‘asking if she can be
released for the day and go home.

MR. MAIONE: Yes. Yes, we are done.

THE COURT: She may go home.

THE COURT CLERK: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Did you hear that question?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: There are different ways to make
official, I guess, what I would call assessment of somebody's
language proficiency.

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Will you please explain those to the Judge?

A. For example, the United States government has
developed a system called ILR, which stands for Interagency
Language Roundtable. And it's a scale where, I think, five
numerical levels are used to evaluate somebody's proficiency.
And each level corresponds to certain ability to speak,
listen, and read and write in a foreign language. So this
would be one way to evaluate somebody's ability.

And then there are also other matrixes that, if
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an actual official evaluation is required, it would more or
less work the same way. You evaluate somebody's listening
ability, comprehension, writing and reading, according to a
certain set of criteria.

THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Were you able to use any of those tools in your
evaluation of Ms. Leibel's ability to communicate in English?
Or similar —-- or anything that you've learned from your
knowledge of —-

A. Well, I —-— I've used the criteria. I didn't use
the specific tools because I didn't thiﬂk that we need to
place her on a certain language of language knowledge. I
thought it was more whether she's able to have a communication
in English or not and how far she's able to -- how much she's
able to express herself.

Q. And your testimony has been that you've used the
L -- you've used those tools from those assessment measures?

MR. JOHNSON: 1I'd ask him to rephrase the
question.

THE COURT: Yeah. That was that was fairly
leading, and I don't think the witness understands it based on

her response.

/17

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

307 9\0{ LtL(



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Have you used -- have you used some of -- you're
familiar with the nature of those testing implements.
Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Did they -- did your knowledge of those
proced- -- those testing instruments help you assess
Ms. Leibel's ability to communicate in English?

A. Yes. I used pretty much the same criteria.

Q. Okay. Were you able to —— when -- so you have
been able to use somewhat of a standardized form or format to
assess her competence in speaking and -—

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.
MR. MALONE: -- understanding English?
THE COURT: That is sustained.
MR. MALONE: Have you.
BY MR. MALONE:

Q. Have you been able to use somewhat of a

standardized format, based on your training =-

MR. JOHNSON: Objection to "somewhat."

THE COURT: Well, the witness has already
described that she didn't use the exact test but she used some
of the tools within it. So I understand what "somewhat"

means, and the question will be completed, please. Thank you.
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BY MR. MALONE:

Q. In your -- in your profession, is constant
assessment of understanding betweeh you and the person you're
interpreting for necessary?

Let me ask that question. 1Is it something that
you reassess in your mind, "Is this working or is this not
working?"

A. You mean communicating with the person I'm
interpreting for?

Q. Yeah.

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you have specialized knowledge about
Russian culture and habits?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Is that useful in assessing somebody's
ability to communicate and understand in English for a native
Russian speaker?

A. Yes. I mean interpreting -- yes.

Q. Did you find portions of the video that you
viewed where you saw basically compliant behavior by —-- that
you were able to recognize as standard and form —- standard
compliant behavior?

And do you understand that question?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection. Leading.
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MR. MALONE: Well, I .said "Did you." I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Yeah, I know. "Did you," which leads
to a yes or no answer, which is a leading question. And it's
also —-- you have not put any -- well, I'm not going to say
anything, tell you what to do.

| But that objection is sustained.
BY MR. MALONE:
| 0. When you did your work to assesé Ms. Leibel's

ability to communicate and -- communicate in English, were you

able to utilize the standardized approach?

A. Yes.

Q. Does your training and education make that
possible?

A. I believe s0, yes.

Q. Okay. Would it be possible -- well, and that's
what —-- that's oné-of the things you've learned?
A. Yes.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I think she has
specialized training £hat would assist the trier of fact in
making a determination regarding Ms. Leibel's language skills
in English.

THE COURT: Response?

MR. JOHNSON: The testimony I heard is she is

able, not that she did perform. But the question was what was
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she able.

THE COURT: I heard that she did. I heard that
she did. She's already said that.she did. So do you have
some other objection?

MR. JOHNSON: Same objections in -- before. If
this Court is considering allowing her to testify, then I ask
to take her on voir dire.

THE COURT: You can voir dire. Have a seat.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR.'JOHNSON:

Q. You said that the -- one of the tests was the
ILR?

A. -R. Yes.

Q. Did you perform that exact test?

A. No.

Q. What was the names of some other similar tests
that you are referring to? You just kind of said there were
other tests.

A, Yes. There's also -- if I'm not mistaken, the
acronym is ACFTL, which I'd be a little préssed right now to
explain what the acronym stands for, but it's the American
council's test to ask -- to evaluate foreign language ability.

Q. And did you administer that test?
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A. No.

Q. Any other similar tests?

A. No. But, as I said, there are also matrixes that
you can use, with -- and they are not formalized in a test,

but it's just a matrix that you can use.

0. And what's one of those matrixes?
A. It —— I mean, it might not have a specific name.
But basically it was —-- like I was saying, a reading,

speaking, writing, and listening test.

Q. And you performed that test while you were
watching the video?

A. I was making notes when I was watching the video.

Q. Did you administer that test while you were
watching that video?

A. No. No.

Q. When did you administer that test?

A. I never did.

Q. Did you perform any test -- do you know what the
word "malingering" means?

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. Did you perform any tests to determine whether,
when you spoke with Ms. Leibel at the women's prison, that she
was using -— feigning to speak English poorly?

A. And, I'm sorry, the question is, did I perform
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any test to assess ——
Q. Did you perform any tests to assess whether she
was -- |
A. Oh, no.
Q. So you don't know whether your observation of her
at the women's prison was her faking speaking English poorly?
A. I have an opinion on that, but...
Q. But you don't know whether?
A. No.
Q. And you didn't perform any tests to determine
whether that was the case?
A. No.
0. And you didn't --
THE COURT: Are there tests for that?
THE WITNESS: I would not know.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. JOHNSON:
Q. And when you say "matrix," you said there was
five levels: Listening, comprehension, writing and reading?
A. No. There are five levels in each of these
categories: Comprehension, reading, writing. Five levels of
language proficiency, zero --
Q. That's in the ILR test --

A. Yes ——
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Q. —— or this unnamed matrix?

A. No, no, no. But these matrixes are pretty
much —-- it's the same standard. Sometimes it could be —-
like, in Europe, for example, there's three—-level —— there's a

three-level designation, I guess. It goes A, B and C. But
it's the same idea.

Q. And are those based on questions you ask the
person you're evaluating?

A. Yes. And also written examples.

Q. Okay. So when you're watching this video, you
couldn't ask her any of those questions. Correct?

A. No.

Q. And when you're watching the video, you couldn't
look at any of her written work. Correct?

A. No.

Q. And what was the other part?

A. Speaking and listening.

Q. Those are in response to questions that you ask.
Correct?

A, Yes.

Q. And you didn't ask questions of the video; it's
only at the prison?
A. I —- yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Same objections, Your Honor. I
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don't believe she has specialized knowledge performed that
will assist the trier of fact in this case.

THE COURT: It sounds to me, ma'am, like you
didn't perform any testing of Ms. Leibel; is that correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And what you did do with Ms. Leibel
is you, one, you reviewed an interview that she had had, and
you made some notes and drew some conclusions about whether it
appeared to you that she comprehended the question; is that
correct?,

THE WITNESS: That's correct.

THE COURT: And the statements that were made to
her from the questions.

THE WITNESS: Correct.

THE COURT: And you reviewed whether you thought
that her responses were appropriate responses to the
questions.

THE WITNESS: Correct.

THE COURT: 1Is that a fair statement?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And then, when you met with her, you
had a conversation with her. Correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And did that conversation occur in

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

315 'ggif;



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

English or in Russian?

THE - WITNESS: Both.

THE COURT: Okay. And at the time that the -
that part of the conversation was in English, you were making
an assessment of whether she understood you in English?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: And whether she could respond to you
in English?

THE WITNESS: For the most part, I did not speak
English with her; For the most part, I spoke Russian, but I
also observed Ms. Leibel and Mr. Malone speak in English with‘
each other.

THE COURT: For how long? How long were they
actually speaking to each other?

MR. MALONE: Most of that time. Well, I don't
know. I would say probably over an hour.

THE COURT: Okay. And --

THE WITNESS: I believe an hour and a half, I
guess.

THE COURT: And so you were —-— you were observing
their conversation, and you were making a judgment as to
whether they were effectively communicating?

THE WITNESS: Yes. And I was making specific

notes on where the communication failures were occurring and
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for what reason linguistically, I guess.

THE COURT: Did you interject in that
conversation?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. How many times did you
interject?

THE WITNESS: I couldn't -- I couldn't give you a
number. But it was —-— it was quite a lot. And also part of
this conversation, what we did was Mr. Malone and Ms. Leibel
spoke to each other just in English. And from the very
beginning when I was introduced to Ms. Leibel, she didn't
understand what my role was going to be. And this is when ——

THE COURT: How do you know that?

THE WITNESS: Well, because she started asking
questions that made me understand that she didn't understand.

THE COURT: Had you ever met her before?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Do you know if Mr. Malone had had a
conversation with her to explain what your role would be?

THE WITNESS: Yes, and this is what happened. So
when we were first there —-

THE COURT: How do you know that?

THE WITNESS: I was there when Mr. Malone was

explaining to Ms. Leibel why I was there and who I was.
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THE COURT: Okay. Aﬁd did -- that conversation
is part of the evaluation that you're using, that you're
making?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: So then tell me what that
conversation was and what part she didn't understand.

THE WITNESS: Well, from the very beginning.

THE COURT: Did she know who Mr. Malone was?

THE WITNESS: Yes. So he said, "This is Natasha
Kharikova, and she's here to assess your ability to
communicate in English with me, and she will also interpret
part of our conversation, and she will also speak to you in
Russian and ask you certain questions."

And Ms. Leibel said, "How many interpreters do I
need? I already have interpreters.”

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Which led me to believe that she
didn't understand this whole introduction that Mr. Malone did.

THE COURT: So you don't know whether he really
explained to her what the end assessment was going to be
because he also introduced you as an interpreter.

THE WITNESS: Well, that is true, vyes.

THE COURT: Okay. And you were not privy fo

conversations that he had with her before you actually arrived
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to the Frances McClure [sic] prison. Right?

THE WITNESS: Right.

THE COURT: And so you don't know whether he
explained that to her, that there would be an assessment; is
that right?

THE WITNESS: I assumed that he did. That was my
understanding.

THE COURT: But you don't know that?

THE WITNESS: I do not know that.

THE COURT: Okay. And so it may be that the
first that she heard that there would be an assessment was
when the two of you came through the door?

THE WITNESS: Possibly.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Do you have questions based on my questions, sir?

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. You observed Ms. Leibel communicating in English

in two different time periods. Correct?

A, Correct.

0. Over three years ago and then several weeks ago?
A. Yes.

Q. Does a comparison of those two situations allow

you to form an opinion about malingering?
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A. To be honest, I didn't think about it. But right
now, I've —— I think I have an opinion.
Q. And what is that?

MR. JOHNSON: Objection to her opinion about
whether they were malingering.

MR. MALONE: She's -- may I respond?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. MALONE: She's respondea that she's basing
her opinion upon her observations of two different time
periods, and so she does have data boints from years apart.
And so I -- I can go into what I think she's going to say, but
it would be a really leading narrative.

THE COURT: Well, I -—- I don't think that this
witness has an expertise on malingering and whether there's
some faking going on.

MR. MALONE: Well --

THE COURT: And so I'm not going to allow that.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, I think by the way of
argument, I think it would take a very sophisticated plan and.
a very nefarious mind to decide to malinger three or four
years ago when she was facing ultimate consequences —- the
death penalty, perhaps -- and to act in a way where she
couldn't tell her story. And then it would take an incredible

amount of fortitude and planning to continue that plan through
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the next three years, five —- four years. That is information
I think the Court can have to make a common sense decision
about there's -- whether or not thgre's aﬁy form of
malingering here or any evidence of malingering.

I think that one thing that would be important
would be,. I think, when people malinger, one way to find out
if they're malingering is ifAtheir story hangs together, if
they say different things in response to similar situations.
And I believe that's information that Ms. Kharikova would have
from her experience and training and from her experience in
this éasé;
| THE'COURT: Okay. I've ruled.

- MR. MALONE: Thank you.

THE COURT: Anything else of this witness?

MR. MALONE: I don't believe I can -- I have any
other questions.

MR. JOHNSON: No questions from the State,
Your'Hono;.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma;am.

Do you have another witness?

MR. MALONE: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, may I have some time to

speak to my client?
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THE COURT: Absolutely. We are at 5:25.

MR. MAIONE: I understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And I}m.not going to keep the staff
here all night.

MR. MALONE: I understand.

THE COURT: And I don't --

MR. MALONE: I do have an important duty to —--

THE COURT: I know you do.

MR. MALONE: -- conéult with her requiring her -—-

THE COURT: I'm familiar with your duties, sif.

MR. MALONE: Thank you, Your Honor. I just —-—

THE COURT: If you would like to go back and have
a private conversation with her back here, you can.

MR. MALONE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You'll need an interpreter.

THE INTERPRETER: Do you need my services?

MR. MALONE: Yes.

THE COURT: No, the other room, I believe.

(A briéf interruption in the proceeding occurred.)

MR. MAIONE: Your Honor, based upon our
conversation with counsel, Ms. Leibel has decided to testify.

THE COURT: Okay. How long do you think you
need?

MR. MALONE: I'm going to ask the bare minimum of
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questions, Your Honor. I understand the Court's position.

THE COURT: No. It's —-- it's fine. But if we
are going to be quite a while, I -- my calendar is clear in
the morning now. I had something that just went off, and I
can do it in the morning if you need, if you're going to be,
you knéﬁ, another céuple Qf hours.

MR. MALONE: Oh, no.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MAIONE: I anticipate 20 minutés of my
portion of this.

THE COURT: How long would you cross?

MR. JOHNSON: I may be longer, maybe 30 minutes.

I can't say for sure, Your Honor. I'm not és good at
estimating, as you saw at the lunch break.

THE COURT: And are you staying here tonight
also, ma'am?

INTERPRETER IACONA: Yes.

THE COURT: What time are you leaving?

INTERPRETER IACONA: At 4:00.

THE COURT: Tomorrow morning?

INTERPRETER IACONA: I can be here at the
pleasure of the Court. My schedule is clear in the morning.
I know my that colleague —-

Tatiana?
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THE COURT: She can —- she's not flying out until
9:00 tomorrow night, I think.

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSY: No, tonight.

THE COURT: Tonight?

INTERPRETER IACONA: At this point -- yeah.
Because we might ~- it might change because, at this point, it
canceled, but they are waiting for their --

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSY: Wait, wait. You need to
be part of this discussion right now. If the entire
hearing —— if need be --

I know that my colleague has a morning job.

INTERPRETER IACONA: But I will cancel it.

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: You will cancel it?
Okay. Because I'm totally okay as long as, you know —- and if
needed, I mean, if you can do that.

INTERPRETER IACONA: Yeah, I can do that.
Because I have to stay late here anyway at this point.

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: Right. And you —- and

the Court has kindly provided us with hotel accommodations, so

‘"we are all set.

THE COURT: Counsel's pleasure.
MR. JOHNSON: I prefer to do it in the morning,
but...

" MR. MAIONE: I'm ready to put her up now. I
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don't know if -- but --

THE COURT: What's your schedule tomorrow
morning?

MR. MAIONE: I'm clear. But, as I said, I think
that I've just got a couple of different questions to ask her.

But I can -- we —— I'm going to leave it to the Court, and I'm

~going to read minds and say let's do it tomorrow morning.

THE COURT: Well, here is my concern: I don't
want the interpreters to be fatigued, and I don't want the
court staff to be too fatigued. I'm willing to go on. But I
know that -- I just don't tend to believe lawyers when they
say they only have 20 minutes. You know, I've never met a
lawyer who didn't stand up and say "Just a couple questions

Your Honor,"

and a couple meaning two, and you just never hear
two questions. So my preference is to reconvene at 9:00
tomorrow morning.

MR. MAIONE: Thank you, Your Honor.

- THE COURT: Because I think that gives you more

‘time. And, quite frankly, it gives me time to make certain

that I listen to the disk before ruling, which I will do this
evening or tomorrow morning.

MR. MAIONE: Before ruling on the petition?

THE COURT: Before ruling on the petition,

absolutely, yeah. I'm going to listen to it.
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Okay. Is -- sir, do you héve an issue?

THE BAILIFF: I have to check with the Nevada
Department of Corrections on her housing.

THE COURT: Are they supposed to pick her up
tonight?

THE BAILIFF: We are supposed to call them wheh
she's ready tonight.

THE COURT: She'll be ready tomorrow morning.

THE BAILIFF: I just don't know the requirements
for head count overnight and such. |

THE COURT: Well, why don't you give them a call
and tell them tﬁat the Court has ordered that she stay here
tonight.

'THE BAILIFF: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: See how that goes.

THE BAILIFF: I am sure they won't have a problem

with it. I just need to make sure their prptoéol is okay with

THE COURT: I, again, fﬁlly appreciate you, sir.
You don't have to make that call in front of us, if you don't
want.

THE BAILIFF: Text message, Your Honor.

MR. MALONE: Your Honor, at this time, can I move
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for admission of the transcript of the 23rd interview,
February 23rd interview?
| THE COURT: Is there an objection thereto?

MR. JOHNSON: I believe it was sustained and was
not admitted in evidence. So I don't believe it's admitted in
-— yes, there's an objection. |

THE COURT: Why do I need the transcripts? I'm
going to —— I told you, I'm going to listen to the actual
conversation.

MR. MALONE: I'm good. I'm —-- sometimes -- I --—
well —— if I can.answer why, it would be that I won't do it.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. MALONE: A couple of questions, Your Honor.
Do you want materials removed from the courtroom overnight?

THE COURT: Well, we are going to lock the
courtroom tonight. And you may leave your materials here.

MR. MALONE: Thank you.

And can we excuse Mr. Mausert's presence
tomorrow? I don't believe —-

MR. MAUSERT: I have stuff on the calendar
tomorrow morning, Your Honor. I don't think my presence is
necessary tomorrow. John has got it under control, I think.

THE COURT: I believe he does, sir. Thanks.

You're excused.
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out.

until 9:00 tomorrow morning.

10:00.

equipment here, Your Honor?

will there be other hearings here?

not allow them to touch any of your materials. You can leave

it here.

MR. MAUSERT: Thank you.
Did you get an answer?

THE BAILIFF: No, Your Honor, but we'll figure it

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. We are in recess

What time is the detention hearing, 9:007?

THE COURT CLERK: I believe it was at 9:00.

THE COURT: What time is the detention hearing?
MS. KIRSHNER: 9:00 a.m. tomorrow morning.

THE COURT: Okay. We are going to start at

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: Is it okay to leave

THE COURT: Pardon?

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: Equipment here? Or

THE COURT: I have a hearing at 9:00 --
INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: Okay. We will -—-

THE COURT: I have a hearing at 9:00, but I will

INTERPRETER SPIVAKOVSKY: Leave everything here?

THE COURT: And we'll be fine. I promise you.
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Thank you.

tomorrow morning.

We were in recess until 10:00

(Proceedings concluded.)

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

~—000--

329

_A.igﬂ;bﬁé'



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

w

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
DOUGLAS COUNTY )

I, SUSAN KIGER, a certified court reporter in the
State of Nevada, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I am not a relative, employee or
independent contractor of counsel to any of the parties, or a
relative, employee or independent contractor of the parties
involved in the proceeding, or a person financially interested
in the procéedings;

That I was present in Department No. One of the
above-entitled Court on November 15, 2018, and took verbatim
stenotype notes of the proceedings had upon the matter
captioned within, and thereafter transcribed them into
typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of
pages 1 through 330, is a full, true and correct transcription
of my stenotype notes of said proceedings.

DATED: At, Carson City, Nevada, this 4th day of
Decemniber, 2018.

SUSAN KIGER, CCR No. 343
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1 CAPITOL REPORTERS

123 W. Nye Lane, Suite 107
2 Carson City, Nevada 89706
775-882-5322 :

3
4 THE NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
5 IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS
6
7
8 STATE OF NEVADA, Case No. 14-CR-62B
Plaintiff,
9 V. Dept. No. One
10 Tatiana Leibel,
Defendant.
11
AFFIRMATION
12 Pursuant to NRS 239B.030
13 The Undersigned does hereby affirm that the following

document DOES NOT contain the social security number of any
14 person: (List of document(s) attached below)

15 1) Post-Conviction Hearing -— November 15, 2018

16 -or-

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the document
17 named below DOES contain the social security number of a
person as required by state or federal law or for the

18 |  administration of a public program or for an application for a
federal or state grant: (List of document(s) attached

19 containing social security number information below)

20 1) L >
21 2) I3 —_
22

23 Y-V M

24 SUSAN KIGER December 4, 2018
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